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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of Jain Sons Finlease Limited will
be held on Thursday, the 25-May-2017 at 3:00pm at the Registered Office of the company at 1002,
10™ Floor, A Block, The Platina, Gachibowli, Hyderabad — 500032, Telangana, India, to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Adogption of Audited Financial Accounts for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2017:
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Accounts of the company for the financial
year ended 31-Mar-2017 together with the reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

Declaration of final Dividend:
To declare final dividend on non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares at the
rate of 0.001% per annum for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2017.

Re-appointment of Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director of the company, who retires by rotation:
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anurag Agrawal (DIN: 02385780}, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP (having Firm Registration Number: 001076N},
Statutory Auditors and fixing of their remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s} the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and any other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended
from time to time, the appointment of Walker Chandiok & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(having Firm Registration Number: 001076N) as Statutory Auditors of the company from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conciusion of next Annual general meeting
of the company be and is hereby confirmed by the members of the company at such
remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc., as may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the company and the Statutory Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Dy. CEQ & CFO and
Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or
expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.

Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Akbar Khan, Additional (Executive} Director & CEQ of
the company as an Executive Director & CEO:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without madification{s} the following resolution
as an Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 152 and 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”) and
the Companies {Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and such other
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applicable provisions, rules as may be applicable {including statutory modification(s} or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force} and any other law for the time being in force,
if applicable, Mr. Akbar Khan {halding DIN: 07657205), whose term of office as an Additional
{Executive) Director, pursuant to ersiwhile Section 260 of the Companies Act, 2013, expires at
this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the company has received a notice under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of an
Executive Director & CEQ, be and. is hereby appainted as an Executive Director & CEO of the
company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary
of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

6. Revision in Remuneration of Mr. Akbar Khan as an Executive Director & CEO of the company:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s} the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 & 203 read with Schedule V
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the revision in
remuneration of Mr. Akbar Khan, as an Executive Director & CEQ of the company w.e.f. 01-
Apr-2017 on such terms and conditions as mentioned in below table be and is hereby

approved:
Particulars | Composition

1 Fixed Salary Rs. 72,00,000/-

2 Performance linked variable pay upto 50% of fixed salary

3 Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the Company’s scheme
4 Leave Encashment As per rules of the Company’s scheme
5 Provident Fund As per rules of the Company’s scheme
6 Telephane expense reimbursement | As per rules of the Company’s scheme

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year during the currency of tenure of service of Mr. Akbar Khan, as an Executive Director &
CEO of the company, the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances as approved by
this resolution shall be payable as minimum remuneraticn.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Chairman and Mr. Anurag Agrawal,
Director of the company be and are hereby severally authorised to issue a letter for increase
in remuneration and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary
of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”
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7. Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Arvind Kedikal, Additional {Nominee) Director of the
campany as a Nominee Director:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESQOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 152 and 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”) and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and such other
applicable provisions, rules as may be applicable {including statutory modification(s} or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force} and any other faw for the time being in force,
if applicable, Mr. Arvind Kodikal {holding DIN: 07623915}, whose term of office as an
Additional (Nominee) Director, pursuant {o erstwhile Section 260 of the Companies Act, 2013,
expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the company has received a
notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office
of a Naminee Director, be and is hereby appeinted as a Nominee Directar of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Chirag Desal, Company Secretary
of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

8. Regularisation of appointment of Mr. Aleem Remtula, Additional {Nominee) Director of the
company as a Nominee Birector:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with ar without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 152 and 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 {*Act”) and
the Companies {Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and such other
applicable provisions, rules as may be applicable (including statutory madification(s} or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force} and any other law for the time being in force,
if applicable, Mr. Aleem Remtula (holding DIN: 02872107), whose term of office as an
Additional (Nominee) Director, pursuant to erstwhile Section 260 of the Companies Act, 2013,
expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the company has received a
notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office
of a Nominee Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Nominee Director of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary
of the company, be and are severally hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or any of the assets
of the Company:

To cansider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s) the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded
pursuant to section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, to the Board of Directors of the company to pledge, mortgage and/or charge in all or
any part of the moveable or immovable properties of the company and the whole or part of
the undertaking of the company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or creating a
floating charge in all or any movable or immovable properties of the company and the whole
of the undertaking of the company to or in favour of Banks, Financial Institutions, any other
lenders or debenture trustees to secure the amount borrowed by the company or any third
party from time to time for the due payment of the Principal together with interest, charges,
costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the company or any third party in respect of
such borrowings provided that the maximum extent of the indebtedness secured by the
properties of the company daes not exceed Rs. 500,00,00,000/- {Rupees Five Hundred Crore
only) at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Dy. CEQ & CFO and
Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or
expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

Borrowing Limits under section 180(1} (c} of the Companies Act, 2013:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification{s) the foowing resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1}){c) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} read with Companies (Meeting of
Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 {including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force}, and the Articles of Association of the company and subject
to such approvals, sanctions and consents (hereinafter referred to as the “Approvais”} as may
be required from such authorities and institutions or bodies and such conditions as may be
prescribed hy any of them while granting such approval, which may be agreed to, in its sole
discretion, by the Board of Directors of the company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the
Board to exercise its powers including powers canferred by this resolution andfor be duly
autharised persons thereof for the tome being exercising the powers conferred on the Board
by this resolution), consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board to borrow in any manner from time to time any sum or sums of moneys at its discretion
on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, notwithstanding that the moneys to
be borrowed by the company together with the moneys already barrowed or to be borrowed
{(apart from temporary loans and other credit facilities obtained or to be obtained from the
company’s bankers in the ordinary course of its business), whether secured ar unsecured, will
or may exceed the aggregate of the paid up capiial and free reserves that is to say, reserves
not set apart for any specific purpose, provided that the maximum amount of money so
barrowed and outstanding at any one time shall not exceed the sum of Rs. 500,00,00,000/-
{Rupees Five Hundred Crore only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Dy. CEQ & CFO and
Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary of the company, be and are hereby severally authorized
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or
expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”
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Approvat of Deed of Assignment for transfer of loans in favour of Intellecash Microfinance
Network Company Private Limited:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the company to enter into a ‘Deed of Assignment’ for assigning two
existing loans (i.e. D.S.K. Mobile and Khyati Pharma) of the Company to Inteflecash
Microfinance Network Company Private Limited, a Company in which Mr. Anurag Agrawal,
Director of the Company is interested as Director in the said Intellecash Microfinance Network
Company Private Limited on such terms and conditions as mentioned in the said draft deed
of assignment.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft ‘Deed of Assignment’, as placed before the meeting and
initialled by the Chairman for the purpose of identifications be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Akbar Khan, Executive Director & CEC and Mr, Nitin Agrawal,
Dy. CEO and Mr. Sourabh Mantri, AVP-Accounts & Admin and Mr. Chirag Desai, Company
Secretary of the Company, be and are severally hereby authorized to sign and execute the
said Deed of Assignment and all such papers, writings, documents and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for the
purpose of giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certified true copy of resclution shall be furnished to such
authority as may be required from time to time.”

By Order of the Board of Directors - - =

s
¢hitag Desai

Company Secretary.

{Membership No.: A22880) o

Mumbai, 24-May-2017

Registered Office:

1002, 10™ Floor, A Block,

The Platina, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad -~ 500 032

CiIN: UBS5S10AP1998PLC08RS41
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Notes:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
special business is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

2. Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of Board Resolution pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorising their representative to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting of the company.

3. Relevant documents referred to in the accampanying Notice and the statement are open for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the company during work hours upto the

date of Meeting.

4, Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts and operations, are requested
to write to the company to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the
meeting.

5. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in

their address to the company.

6. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel’s Shareholdings maintained under
Section 170 and Register of Contract or Arrangements in which Director are interested under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
company during work hours upto the date of Meeting.
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Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013}

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act), the following explanatory statement sets
out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under {tem No. 5 to 12 of the accompanying
Notice:

Itemn No. 5 - Regularisation of Appointment of Mr. Akbar Khan as an Executive Director & CEOQ of the
company:

Mr. Akbar Khan holds a MBA degree from the London Business School. He is a Chartered Accountant,
having qualified as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He also
holds a BA with First Class in Economics from the Mumbai University.

Mr. Akbar Khan comes with 22 years of experience in the business management, deat origination,
transaction structuring and execution and relationship management and spent most of his career in
the financial service sector.

Prior to joining the campany, he has worked at General Electric where he was a member of the South
Asia Leadership team and he was responsible for driving key strategic initiatives and M&A transactions
in South Asia and the Middle East. '

Based on the recommendation of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mr. Akbar Khan as an Additional {(Executive) Director
& CEO of the company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 24-May-2017 subject to approval of the members
of the company on such terms and conditions as mentioned below:

S, Particulars Composition

1 | Fixed Salary Rs. 65,00,000/- per annum with an increase which
may be decided by the Board of Directors from time
to time within the limits, as specified in Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

2 | Performance linked variable pay Upto 33% of fixed salary

3 | Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the company’s scheme
4 | Leave Encashment As per rules of the company's scheme
5 | Provident Fund As per rules of the company’'s scheme
6 | Telephone expensea As per rules of the company’s scheme

reimbursement

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of
profits, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Akbar Khan holds
office as Additional {Executive) Director of the Company upto the date of this Annual General Meeting.
The Company has received a notice along with requisite deposit from a member under section 160 of
the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his eandidature for the office of Executive Director. Further, he is
not disqualified from being appointed as director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his
consent to as an Executive Director of the company.
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The Board of Directors recommend the Special Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 5 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Mr. Akbar Khan is not holding any Directorship in other listed company and any shares in this company
or any other company. Except, Mr. Akbar Khan, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said
resolution.

Item Na. 6 — Revision in remuneration of Mr. Akbar Khan as an Executive Director & CEQ of the
company:

ivir. Akbar Khan was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e.f. 07-Nov-2016 and
thereafter was appointed as an Additional (Executive) Director of the company w.e.f. 24-May-2017.
ir. Akbar Khan holds a MBA degree from the London Business School. He is a Chartered Accountant,
having qualified as a member of the institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He also
holds & BA with First Class in Economics from the Mumbai University.

Mr. Akbar Khan comes with 22 years of experience in the business management, deal origination,
transaction structuring and execution and relationship management and spent most of his career in
the financial service sector.

Prior to joining the company, he has worked at General Electric where he was a member of the South
Asia Leadership team and he was responsible for driving key strategic initiatives and M&A transactions
in South Asia and the Middle East.

Based on recommendation of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Board of Directors of the company has revised the remuneration of Mr, Akbar Khan, Executive Director
& CEQ of the company w.e.f. 01-Apr-2017 for the remaining tenure of his appointment, subject to
approval of the members of the company, as mentioned herein below:

Sl Particulars Composition

1 | Fixed Salary Rs. 72,00,000/- per annum with an increase which may
ke decided by the Board of Directors from time to time
within the limits, as specified in Schedute V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

2 1 Performance linked variable pay Upto 50% of fixed salary

3 | Mediclaim coverage As per rules of the company’s scheme
4 | Leave Encashment As per rules of the company’s scheme
S | Provident Fund As per rules of the company’s scheme
6 | Telephone expense reimbursement | As per rules of the company’s scheme

The above remuneration is to be paid as minimum remuneration in the absence or inadequacy of
profits, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution respectively as set out at item no. 6 of the
notice for approval of the Members.
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. Akbar Khan is not holding any Directorship in other listed company and any shares in this company
or any other company. Except, Mr. Akbar Khan, being appointee, none of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said
resalution.

Additional Information for item Nos. 5&6:

The details as required Schedute V of the Companies Act, 2013, are given below:

{. General Information:

1 Nature of Industry The company is engaged in the business of
lending or advancing money either with or
without security and to arrange and negotiate
foan.

2 Date or expected date of commencement | The company is an existing company and is in

of commercial production operation since 1998
3 In case of new companies, expected date | Not Applicable
of commencement of activities as per
project approved by financial institutions
appearing in the prospectus
4 Financial performance based on given | As on 31-Mar-2017:
indicators EPS (basic): Rs.4.74 per share
EPS (diluted): Rs.2.41 per share
Total Revenues: Rs.45,30,37,960/-
Profit After Tax: Rs.5,20,48,825/-
5 Foreign investments or collaborations, if | Rs 10,00,00,000/- by Michael and Susan Dell
any Foundation;
Rs 40,00,00,015.04/- by ON Mauritius
Rs 18,00,00,022.92/- by DWM (International)
Mauritius Ltd
Rs. 9,00,00,011.46/- Triodos SICAV [l Tricdos
Microfinance Fund
Rs. 9,00,00,011.46/- Triodos Custody B.V. INZ.
Triodos Fair Share Fund

IL. Information about the appointee:

1

Background details

Mr. Akbar Khan comes with 22 years of
experience in the husiness management, deal
origination, transaction structuring and

-execution and relationship management and

spent most of his career in the financial service
sector.

Prior to joining the company, he has worked at
General Electric where he was a member of the
South Asia Leadership team and he was
responsible for driving key strategic initiatives
and M& A transactions in South Asia and the
Middle East.

10
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2 Past Remuneration Fixed Salary: Rs. 65,00,000/-
Performance linked variahle pay: upto 33% of
the fixed amount

3 Recognition or awards Mr. Akbar Khan is having good experience in
the industry in which the company operates.
4 Job profile and his suitably He is actively involved in the business of the

company and manages day to day business
activities. He is also responsible for new
business development of the company. Taking
into consideration his expertise, he is well
suited for the responsibilities currently
assigned to him by the Board of Directors of the
company.

5 Remuneration proposed Fixed Salary: Rs. 72,00,000/-

Performance linked variable pay: upto 50% of
the fixed amount

6 Comparative remuneration profile with | At par with the industry standards in which the
respect tq industry, size of the company, | company operates

profile of the position and person (in case
of expatriates the relevant details would
be with respect to the country of his
origin)

7 Pecuniary relationship directly or | Norelationship with any promoter, directors or
indirectly with the company, or | other managerial personnel.

relationship  with the  managerial
personnel, if any

Itf. Cther Information:

1 Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Not Applicable
2 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for | Not Applicable
improvement

3 Expected increase in productivity and ; Not Applicable
profits in measurable

ltem No. 7 — Appointment of Mr. Arvind Kodikal as a Nominee Director:

Mr. Arvind Kodikal was appointed as Additional (Nominee) Director of the company, as a nominee of
Triodos Custody B.V. INZ. Triodos Fair Share Fund (TFSF) and Triodas SICAV I Triodos Microfinance
Fund {TMF) w.e.f. 24-May-2017. Mr. Arvind Kodikal holds Masters in Financial Management from
Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.

He is presently the senior investment officer at a leading sustainability development facused hank
with responsibilities of sourcing, analysing, executing and monitoring private equity and debt
transactions within SME/Microfinance and Non-banking finance entities. He is alsc a member of the
Tricdos Asian emerging markets investments committee and hold board positions in investee
companies. He is specialized in establishing foreign investor structures, impact investment,
relationship management and micro-financing. He is also a member of the investment committee for
the Asian region of TIM Emerging Markets. He also worked on creating South Asian strategy for the
Microfinance group funds, identifying projects for Investments.

11
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Pursuant to the provisions of saction 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Arvind Kodikat holds office
as such upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. The company has received a notice along with
requisite deposit from a member under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his
candidature for the office of Nominee Director.

The Board of Directors hereby recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 7 of the
notice for approval of the Members.

Except, Mr. Arvind Kodikal, being an appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of
the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Item No. 8§ — Appointrment of Mr. Aleem Remtula as a Nominee Director:

Mr. Aleem Remtula was appointed as Additional (Nominee} Director of the company, as a nominee of
DWM {International) Mauritius Ltd. w.e.f. 24-May-2017. Mr. Aleem Remtula holds MBA from the
Harvard Business Schoal and an A.B. in economics and finance from Princeton University.

pMr. Aleem Remtula is Managing Director in the Private Equity practice at Developing World Markets,
an emerging and frontier markets impact investmenit manager. He has been actively involved with the
firmn’s investment in SMILE Microfinance Ltd and JSCMFO Crystal. He has also spent 10 years in double
bottom line and impact investing with firms like the New York city investment fund, bridges ventures
and living cities before joining DWM.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Aleem Remtiula holds office
as such upio the date of this Annual General Meeting. The company has received a notice along with
requisite deposit from a member under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his
candidature for the office of Nominee Director.

The Board of Directors hereby recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 8 of the
natice for approval of the Members.

Except, Mr. Aleem Remtula, being an appointee, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of
the company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Itern No. 9 & 10 — Authorisation to the Board of Directors to mortgage, create charge on all or any
of the assets of the company and Borrowing Limits under sections 180{1){(a} and 180(1}{c) of the
Companies Act, 2013:

in order to meet the future requirements of funds, which may arise on account of the
ptans/programs/business, the company may require further loans/borrowings from time to time from
the financial institutions, banks and other entities. Further, to secure such borrowings, the company
may be required to create charge/mortgage/hypothecation on all or any of its movable and/or
immovable assets, hoth present and future as may be required from time to time.

In terms of the provisions of Section 180{1)}c) &180{1}(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company
needs to take approval of members of the company for increasing the borrowing powers and authority
to create charge / mortgage on the assets of the company to secure the money(ies) borrowed from
the financial institutions, banks and other financial entities from time to time. Hence it is proposed to
take your approval for a imit upto Rs. 500,00,00,000/- {(Rupees Five Hundred Crore only).

12
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The Board of Directors hereby recommends the Special Resolutions as set out at item nos. 9 & 10 of
the notice for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the company or their relatives are concerned or
interested in the said resolution.

Item No. 11 — Approval of Deed of Assignment for transfer of loans in favour of Intellecash
Microfinance Network Company Private Limited:

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and dealings between the
related parties of the Company. The provisions of Section 188{1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which
governs the Related Party Transactions, and it requires that for entering into any contract or
arrangement as mentioned herein below with the related party, the Company must obtain prior
approval of the Board of Directors and in case of the Company meet the criteria as mentioned in the
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers} Rules, 2014, prior approval of the shareholders by way
of a Resolution must be obtained

Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

Leasing of property of any kind;

Availing or rendering of any services;

Appointment of any agent for purchases or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary
company or associate company and

7. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the Company.

AN i

tn the light of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and upon recommendation of the members of
Audit & Compliance Committee, the Board of Directors of your Company in their meeting held on 24-
May-2017, had approved the Deed of Assignment, to be entered into with Intellecash Microfinance
Network Company Private Limited.

The particulars of the transaction pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as under:

Particular Capital Advisory Contract
1 Name of the Related Party Intellecash Microfinance Network Company Private
Limited
2 Name of the Director or Key tir. Anurag Agrawal

Managerial Personnel who is
related, if any

3 Nature of Relationship Mr. Anurag Agrawal is interested as Director in Intellecash
Microfinance Network Company Private Limited

4 Nature, Material Terms, Transfer of two existing loans of the Company as

Monetary value and mentioned below to Intellecash Microfinance MNetwork

particulars of the contract or | Company Private limited at a consideration of Rs.

arrangement 12,04,956/- (Rupees Twelve Lakhs Four Thousand Nine

Hundred and Fifty-Six only} and on such a terms and
conditions as mutually agreed between the parties and as
mentioned in Deed of Assignment:

13
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a. Lloan of Rs. 5,00,000/- given to D.S.K. Maoabile on such
terms & conditions as mentioned and agreed in the
Facility Agreement, entered between the Company
and D.S.K. Mobile on 31-Mar-2017;

b. Loan of Rs. 10,00,000/- given to Khyati Pharma on such
terms & conditions as mentioned and agreed in the
Facility Agreement, entered between the Company
and Khyati Pharma on 31-Mar-2017.

5 Any other Information The Deed of Assignment is entered on arm’s length basis
relevant or important for the | and all factors relevant to the respective deed have heen
members to take a decision considered by the Board. The Copy of the above-
on the proposed resolution mentioned Deed of Assignment shall be available for

inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Company during the normal business hours {10 am to 6
pm) on all working days {except Saturdays) upto the date
of Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The members are further informed that no member/s of the Company being a refated party or having
any interest in the resclution as set out at item No. 11 shall be entitled to vote on this special
resolution.

The Board of Directors hereby recommends the Special Resolution as set forth in item No. 11 for
approval of the Members.

Except the said interested Director, no other director or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives,
is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of this resolution.

of S»e Board of Directors

sew
< Ehirsg Desal
Company Secretary

{Membership No.: A22880)
Mumbai, 24-May-2017

Registered Office:

1002, 10" Floor, A Block,

The Platina, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad — 500 032

CIN: UB5910AP1398PLC088941
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Jain Sons Finlease Limited (IntelleGrow),

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Nineteenth Annual Report of the company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31-Mar-2017:

1. Financial Resuits:
Particulars

Current Year ended

Current Year ended

31-Mar-2017 (in Rs.)

31-Mar-2016 (in Rs.)

Revenue from Business Operations 42,68,43,735 30,81,08,706
Other Income 2,61,94,225 54,36,456
Total Revenues 45,30,37,960 31,35,45,162
Less: Expenses 16,29,38,556 13,67,72,126
Profit before Interest and Depreciation 29,00,99,404 17,67,73,036
Less Interest 21,19,23,202 16,08,93,121
Profit before Depreciation 7,81,76,202 1,58,79,915
Less: Depreciation 21,96,665 18,22,368
Profit after Depreciation and Interest 7,59,79,537 1,40,57,547
Less: Current Income Tax 1,90,41,753 59,80,815
Less: Deferred tax benefits 48,88,959 (39,67,838)
Less: Tax of earlier years 0 19,48,920
Net Profit after Tax 5,20,48,825 1,00,95,650
Amount transferred to Statutory Reserve 1,04,09,765 20,19,130
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 4,16,39,060 80,76,520
Earnings per share (Basic) 4.74 0.93
Earnings per share (Diluted) 2.41 0.62

2. Dividend:

Yours Directors have pleasure in recommending payment of dividend at the rate of 0.001% per annum
to the non-cumulative preference shareholders of the company amounting to Rs. 3385/-. The
dividend, if approved by the members of the company, will be paid to those preference shareholders
whose name appears on the Register of Preference Shareholders as on 24-May-2017.

3. Review of Business Operations and Future Prospects:

IntelleGrow continues to spot deserving Ventures and support their growth funding with team’s ability
to structure deals. IntelleGrow mainly focusses on small-corporates in their early-stages of growth.
Much before startups became a buzzword, IntelleGrow has been funding the early-stage businesses.
The company focus on ventures which would not get debt from traditional sources. The Indian early-
stage ecosystem has been starved of quality debt providers who could offer cash-flow based lending.
IntelleGrow pioneered this concept with an impact thesis. Venture debt has emerged as an attractive
asset class for startups and SMEs looking for financing without having to dilute equity stakes.

In FY17, IntelleGrow launched India’s first SME Debt Pool Program in collaboration with Geneva-based
leading global investment company Symbiotics to bring international financing to small corporates
and medium enterprises (SME) in the country through innovative financing structure. This
collaboration is aimed at supporting social enterprises in India which find it difficult to raise sufficient
debt facilities to meet their funding needs. This launch is a part of IntelleGrow’s thrust in fostering
innovative financing to SMEs in collaboration with international partners like Symbiotics. This
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innovative instrument is very useful for capital starved Impact SMEs often known as “missing middle”
as they are largely under-banked. This funding is especially helpful in funding both the working capital
needs and also the capacities of growing SMEs.

The company has doubled the new client acquisition with 66 new clients added to the portfolio
compared to 29 & 31 added in last 2 years respectively. Also, there has been significant increase in
disbursement volumes to Rs.266 crore from our Balance Sheet compared to Rs.130 crore & Rs.132
crore respectively in fast 2 years. In FY17, Impact debt pool program was launched with two Structured
Finance transactions booked in H1 and H2 respectively totalling to Rs.76 crore (USD11mn) which
enhanced AUM by Rs.62 crore. This led to increase in the Asset Under Management (AUM) from
Rs.154 crore to Rs.314 crore (~USD47mn). Despite slowdown due to Demonetization, Profit after Tax
rose to Rs.5.2cr showing a growth of ~5x compared to last Financial Year.

Average monthly disbursements from own Balance Sheet has doubled over last two years from
Rs.10.8cr and Rs.11.0cr respectively to Rs.22.1cr. Average new client acquisition per month has
doubled from 3 in last two years to 6 this year. The company continue to maintain a disbursement
mix to new and old clients and tranche out disbursements to new clients. Average ticket size is
Rs.2.01cr with a range of Rs.0.2cr on the lower side and Rs.7.0cr on the higher side, excluding outliers
like partnership loans and receipts discounting.

InFY17, Operating profit tripled, mainly on economies of scale with 44% growth in revenue while opex
grew 31%. With addition of Rs.51cr primary equity also helped improve float income and reduce
leverage.

4. Shares:

a. Buy back of securities:
The company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. Sweat Equity:
The company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

¢. Bonus Shares:
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d. Employees Stock Option plan:

The company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under
review.

e. Private Placement:
During the year under review, the company has issued and allotted 58,49,966 Series C Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each at Rs. 87.18/- per share to the following persons on
private placement basis on 06-May-2016:
Sl. | Name & Occupation of Address of the Allottees Number of
No. | Allottees shares allotted
ON Mauritius C/o. International Financial Services Limited, 17,20,578

IFS Court, Twenty Eight, Cybercity, Ebene —
72201, Mauritius

Occupation: Business
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2 DWM (international) Suites 340-345 Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan _ 20,64,694
Mauritius Limited Waterfront, P.O. Box 1070, Port Louis,

. . Republic of Mauritius
Occupation: Business

3 Triodos SICAV If Triodos | 11-13, Boulevard De La Foire, L-1528 10,32,347
Microfinance Fund Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Occupation: Business

4 Triodos Custody B.V. Utrechtseweg 60, 3704, HE Zeist, The 10,32,347
INZ. Triodos Fair Share Netherlands
Fund

Occupation: Business

Total 58,49,966

f. Authorised Share Capital:

The Authorised Share Capital of the company is Rs. 55,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Five Crore Fifty Lakhs
only) divided into 1,75,00,000 (One Crore Seventy Five Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each, 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 20/- (Rupees
Twenty Only) each, 3,00,000 (Three Lakhs) Series B2 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each and 25,00,000 (Twenty Five Lakhs) Series B1 Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each and 60,00,000 (Sixty
Lakhs) Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

g. Paid-up share Capital:

During the year under review, the company has issued and allotted 58,49,966 (Fifty Eight Lakhs Forty
Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty Six) Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
Rs. 10/-each at a premium of Rs. 77.18/- each to foreign entities on 06-May-2016. As on 31-Mar-2017,
the paid-up share capital of the company is Rs. 44,81,87,940/- (Rupees Forty Four Crore Eighty One
Lakhs Eighty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty only) divided into 1,09,69,348 (One Crore Nine
Lakhs Sixty Nine Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Eight) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only);
3,00,000 (Three Lakhs) Series B1 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One
Hundred only) each; 24,99,948 (Twenty Four lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty
Eight) Series B2 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only)
each and 58,49,966 (Fifty Eight Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty Six) Series C
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

5. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

a. Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the company, Mr. Anurag
Agrawal (DIN: 02385780), Director of the company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment and your Board recommends his
re-appointment.

b. Appointment of Directors:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mr. Akbar Khan
(DIN: 07657205), as an Executive Director & CEO w.e.f. 24-May-2017 for a period of 3 years; Mr. Arvind
Kodikal (DIN: 07623915), as a Nominee Director and Mr. Aleem Remtula (DIN: 02872107), as a
Nominee Director subject to the approval of the shareholders in their Annual General Meeting to be
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held on 25-May-2017. The company has received notices along with requisite deposit from a member
of the company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing their candidature for the
office of Directors of the company. Your Board recommends their appointment.

c. Cessation of Directors:

During the year, Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha has resigned from the post of Director & CEO from the Board
of the company on 30-Sep-2016. The Board places on record its appreciation for his valuable
contribution made during his tenure as Director & CEO of the company.

d. Declaration from Independent Directors:

The company has received declarations from Mr. Rakesh Rewari and Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy,
Independent Directors of the company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as
stipulated in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. Disqualification of Directors:

The company has received declarations from all the Directors including Independent Directors of the
company confirming that they are not disqualified on account of non-compliance with any of the
provisions of the Act and as stipulated in Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f. Annual Performance evaluation of the Board:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation
of its own performance, the directors individually (including Chairman). The feedback of the
Independent Directors on their review of the performance of non-independent directors and the
Board as whole, the performance of the Chairman of the company was made based on the
questionnaire to evaluate the performances of executive, non-executive directors. The evaluation
framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprised of the following key areas:

i. Composition of Board;

ii. Oversight of Management;

iii. Managing the Senior Management;

iv. Information & Time;

v. Board Dynamics;

vi. Stakeholder Management;

vii. Performance Evaluation.

g. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
During the year, Mr. Akbar Khan was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the company w.e.f. 07-
Nov-2016.

6. Managerial Remuneration and other details:

The necessary details/disclosures of Ratio of Remuneration to each Director to the median employee’s
remuneration and other details pursuant to the Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
is annexed as Annexure — A with this report.

7. Policy on Directors’ appointment, payment of remuneration and discharge of their duties:

The company’s policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the “fit and proper’ criteria to be
adopted at the time of appointment of directors and on a continuing basis, pursuant to the Non-
Banking Financial Companies — Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions 2015 issued by the
Reserve Bank of India is annexed as Annexure - B with this report.
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8. Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review:
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on company’s/ business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business. A tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings
of the company is placed in the Board Meeting at the start of each financial year to facilitate the
Directors to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in
case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing resolutions
through circulation, as permitted by law, which are confirmed and noted in the subsequent Board

meeting.

The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be
discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision. The intervening gap
between the two consecutive meetings was within the period as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

As on date, the Board is comprised of nine directors viz:

The Board met six (

Sl
\[oB

. Vineet Chandra Rai -
. Rakesh Rewari
. Bhama Krishnamurthy -
. Pradeep Pursnani -
. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Mr.
. Aleem Remtula
. Akbar Khan

Arvind Kodikal

Date of Board
Meeting

Chairman

- Independent Director

- Director

Independent Director
Nominee Director
Nominee Director

- Additional (Nominee) Director
- Additional (Nominee) Director
- Additional (Executive) Director & CEOQ

Venue of the Board Meeting

6) times during the year, the details of which are as given below:

Name of Director’s Pr;esent

1

1 | 06-May-2016 13C, 6% Floor, Techniplex-1l IT Park, |1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon |2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari
(West), Mumbai - 400062 3. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
4. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
5. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
6. Mr. Anurag Agrawal
7. Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha
2 | 26-May-2016 | Radisson Hotel, Hyderabad Hitech |1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
City, Gachibowli, Miyapur Road, {2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari
Hyderabad- 500032 3. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
4. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
5. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
6. Mr. Anurag Agrawal
7. Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha
3 | 20-Sep-2016 13C, 6™ Floor, Techniplex-Il IT Park, |1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon |2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari
(West), Mumbai — 400062 3. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
4. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani
5. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
6. Mr

. Anurag Agrawal
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Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

4 | 11-Nov-2016 13C, 6™ Floor, Techniplex-l IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai — 400062

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy

. Pradeep Pursnani

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

5 | 15-Dec-2016 13C, 6" Floor, Techniplex-ll [T Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai — 400062

6. | 02-Mar-2017 13C, 6% Floor, Techniplex-1l IT Park,
Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover, Goregaon
{West), Mumbai — 400062

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy
Mr. Pradeep Pursnani

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran
Mr. Anurag Agrawal

OURWNRIOUAEWNLIORWNR
<
-3

10. Committees of the Board:

During the year under review, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board had re-
constituted below committees upon the resignation of Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEO of the
company w.e.f. 30-Sep-2016.

1. Asset Liability Management Committee;
2. Corporate Governance and Executive Committee;
3. Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committee;

There are currently seven Committees of the Board, as mentioned herein below:
1. Audit and Compliance Committee;

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

3. Risk Committee;

4. Corporate Governance and Executive Committee;

5. Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievance Redressal Committee;

6. Asset Liability Management Committee;

7. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The composition and number of meetings held during the year under review of the above said
committees are as under:

Sl. Name of the Composition of Committees Number of Date of Meetings
No. Committees during the FY 2017 Meetings held held during the
Meetings during the FY 2017 F\} 2017

1 Audit and 1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari 5 26-May-2016
Compliance 2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy ‘ 20-Sep-2016
Committee 3. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 11-Nov-2016
15-Dec-2016

02-Mar-2017

2 Nomination 1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari 5 26-May-2016
and 2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 20-Sep-2016

3. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani 11-Nov-2016
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Remuneration |4. Mr. Anurag Agrawal 15-Dec-2016

Committee 02-Mar-2017

Asset Liability |1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 26-May-2016

Management |2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 20-Sep-2016

Committee 3. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 15-Dec-2016

02-Mar-2017

Product, 1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 26-May-2016

Process, Credit |2. Mr. Rakesh Rewari 02-Mar-2017

Policy and 3. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

Grievance

Redressal

Committee

Risk 1. Mr. Rakesh Rewari 26-May-2016

Committee 2. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 20-Sep-2016
3. Mr. Anurag Agrawal 15-Dec-2016

Corporate 1. Mr.Vineet Chandra Rai 08-Jun-2016

Governance 2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy 26-Sep-2016

and Executive |3. Mr. Anurag Agrawal 19-Dec-2016

Committee 03-Feb-2017

Corporate 1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 02-Mar-2017

Social 2. Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy

Responsibility |3. Mr. Pradeep Pursnani

Committee 4. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

The Charters of the above said committees are annexed as Annexure - C with this Report.

11. Audit and Compliance Committee and its Composition:

As on 31-Mar-2017, Audit and Compliance Committee comprises of following members:
e Mr. Rakesh Rewari,

e Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy; and

*  Mr. Pradeep Pursnani.

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit Committee of the company. Mr. Chirag Desai, Company
Secretary of the company, acts as Secretary of the Audit and Compliance Committee.

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board reviews the reports, which are to be submitted
with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accounting matters. It also supervises the
company’s internal control and financial reporting process.

12. Vigil Mechanism:

The company has a Vigil Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors and employees
who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and
Compliance Committee in the exceptional cases. The company also provides direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee on reporting issues concerning the interests of
employees and the company. We affirm that during the financial year 2016-17, no employee or
director was denied access to the Audit and Compliance Committee.
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13. Directors Responsibility Statement:

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and

explanations obtained by them and as required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

states that:

(a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit
committee, the board is of the opinion that the company’s internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during the financial year 2016-17.

14. Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers
made by the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor in their reports:

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors or by
Secretarial Auditor in their respective reports. However, following are the observations from the
Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor:

Management Response!
e The delay in filing Form CHG-1 was due

Auditor’s Observation
1 | Delay in submission of following forms with

Registrar of Companies (RoC}): to technical issue on affixing DSCin the
e Form CHG-1 for the loan obtained from IFMR; said form from IFMR side;
e Form INC-22 for shifting of registered office | ® Form INC-22 is not getting uploaded
within Hyderabad. despite efforts due to following two
reasons:

> Split of Andhra Pradesh and
Telangana state not updated in
RoC database managed by TCS.
Common problem faced by all
companies.

» Outstanding compounding
applications in NCLT pending for
approval in ROC system blocked
loading of this form online.

After the above two issues were

resolved, filing went through.
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2 | Non-submission of intimation of payment date for | We contest this requirement since the
interest due and delay in submission of certificate | submission is done at the time of
for payment of interest due to Symbiotic on 13- | subscription to securities and it does not
May-2016 with BSE Limited under Securities and | need to be done if contractual payments
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and | are being made.

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

3 | Delay in filling ALM -2 return for the half year | RBI COSMOS website where filing is done
ended 30-Sep-2016 was showing login error. We escalated it
to DNBS officials, and obtained fresh user
specs and then uploaded. Therefore, this
was procedural in nature.

4 | Delay in payment of statutory dues e Due to ongoing Interest reconciliation
with Bellwether, the TDS payment on
interest payable to Bellwether was
delayed by 12 days — but done once
the recon was completed. This is
operational in nature.

e Provident fund payment of Rs. 5,625
on account of a specific employee
arising on F&F settlement where the
reliving date was changed due to
business' reason. This is also
operational in nature.

15. Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate and the date
of the Report:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate on the date of this
report.

16. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future:

There was no significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal, which impacts
the going concern status of the company or will have bearing on company's operations in future.

17. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The information as required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conversation of energy, technology absorption is not
applicable as the company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity during the year.

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are as
under:

Particulars (In Indian Rupees)
2016-17 2015-16 |
Total Expenditure in Foreign Currency 15,381 5,08,712.00
Total Earnings in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
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18. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013:

The details of loans, guarantee or investment under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is given
under Notes to Accounts of financial statements.

19. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties under section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties pursuant to section 188, in
Form AOC-2 as prescribed under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Accounts of Companies
under the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31-Mar-2017, is annexed as Annexure - D with this report.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the company has
been uploaded on the website of the company. The web link of the same is as under
http://intellegrow.com/images/download/loan/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf

20. Extract of Annual Return:
The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure - E with this report.

21. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies:
The company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate company.

22. Corporate Social Responsibility:
As on 31-Mar-2017, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board comprises of the
following members:

Sl. No. Name of Member Status

1 Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai Chairman

2 Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy Independent Director
3 Mr. Pradeep Pursnani Nominee Director

4 Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran | Nominee Director

The company has closed its books of accounts for the financial year ending 31-Mar-2017 with the net
profit of Rs.5,20,48,825/-, the company has approved CSR budget of Rs. 13,50,000/-. The company
shall allocate the CSR expenditure in line with CSR initiatives as details in the CSR policy during the
year FY2017-18.

23. Public Deposits:

Your company is a non-deposit taking company (NBFC-ND-SI). During the year under review, the
company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 and 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The company has passed a
resolution for non-acceptance of deposits from public.

24, Statutory Auditors:

The company has received letter from M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants to the
effect that they are willing to be re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company and if re-
appointed then, their appointment would be within the limits prescribed under Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and they are not disqualified from being appointed as Statutory Auditors.

Your Directors recommends the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the company to hold the office from the conclusion of the
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ensuing Annual General Meeting upto the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the company
to audit financial statements of the company.

25. Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the company has appointed
M Baldeva Associates, a firm of company Secretaries in practice, Mumbai to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed and forming part of this report as an
Annexure —F.

26. Internal Control Systems:

The company has an internal contro!l system which is commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Internal Auditor monitors the efficiency of the internal control
systems in the company, compliance with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of
the company. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to Audit
Committee of the Board.

27. Internal Auditor:

The company has appointed Anuj S. Sharma & Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as its
Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates internal audit function, corrective action
in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls and reports the same on monthly,
quarterly and half yearly basis to the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board.

28. Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
The detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis is hereby annexed as Annexure — G with
this report.

29. Information under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013:

The company has constituted an Internal Compliant Committee under Section 4 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
year under review, no complaint was filed before the said Committee.

30. Risks and Areas of Concern:

The company has laid down a well-defined Risk Management Policy covering the risk mapping, trend
analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being
carried out to identify, evaluate, manage and monitoring of both business and non-business risk. The
Board periodically reviews the risks and suggest steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same
through a properly defined framework.

31. Credit Rating:
The Rating agencies have assigned ratings for facility availed by the company, details of which is as
given below:
Facility . Ratings ; Ambunt (Rs.
‘ " In crore)

Non-Convertible Debenture issue CARE BBB-
(Triple B Minus)

11
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32. Capital Adequacy:
Your company is well capitalized and has capital adequacy ratio of 40.01% as at 31- Mar-2017 as against
the minimum regulatory requirement of 15.00 % for non-deposit accepting NBFCs.

33. RBI Guidelines:

The Certificate of Registration was issued to the company in January, 1999 vide registration no. 14.01458B
by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), New Delhi. Later on, the company has shifted its registered office from
Hissar to Hyderabad in the year 2013 and revised Certificate of Registration was issued to the company in
2014 vide registration no. B-09.00441 by RB!, Hyderabad, to commence the business of a non-banking
financial institution without accepting deposits. Your company has complied with and continues to comply
with all applicable regulations and directions of the RBI.

34. Acknowledgements:

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during
the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed on your company.

and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T )a//

Vi{ng‘e"‘t ChandraRai Akbar Khan
“oom Chairman Executive Director & CEQ
(DIN: 00606290) (DIN: 07657205)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24-May-2017
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Disclosure on Managerial Remuneration and other details

P nnocwe - A

nexure-A

The Information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees

of the Company for the financial year:

"Non-executive Directors

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai k

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

Mr. Pradeep Pursnani

Mr. Anurag Agrawal

_Executive Directors

~ | Ratio to |
| remuneratio

median

Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha {upto 30-Sep-2016)

’ ,9,.,341

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year:

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai

Mr. Rakesh Rewari

Ms. Bhama Krishnamurthy

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran

Mr. Pradeep Pursnani

Mr. Anurag Agrawal

Mr. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director & CEO (upto 30-Sep-2016)

9%

Mr. Akbar Khan, Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 07-Nov-2016)

Mr. Nitin Agrawal, Chief Financial Officer

19%

Mr. Chirag Desai, Company Secretary

22%

¢. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 31%

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31-Mar-2017:

e. Percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in
comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer:

Not Applicable.

f. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase



in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out is there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year is 32%.
Average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration is 14%.

Justification:
a. Hiring of low cost staff to supplement growth in FY17 has brought the median down
b. To keep in line with business and growth, there is increase in percentile.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Not Applicable
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JAIN SONS FINLEASE LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:

in pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay
equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)and Employees of the
company, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the company
and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and remuneration
of Directors, KMP and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of Committee:
1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of three or more non-executive
directors out of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors.

2. The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair the Committee.

Objective:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of
directors, KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior
Management.

1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP
and other employees.

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management.




1.6. To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

1.7. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

1.8. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
1.9. To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

1.10 To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

Applicability:

a) Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)
b)  KmP
c) Senior Management Personnel

Definitions:
“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time.

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.
“Key Managerial Personnel” means

i. Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time
Director;

ii. Chief Financial Officer;

iii. Company Secretary; and

iv.  such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management” means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined
herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the
meaning respectively assigned to them therein.



Policy for Appointment and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management:

1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment.

The Committee shall undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of the
person for appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a director on the Board, based upon
qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other ‘fit and proper’ criteria.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether gqualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

The Company shall appoint Independent/Non-Executive Directors nominated to the Board should
be between 35 to 70 years of age.

The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the proposed/existing
directors as per the format provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

The Company shall obtained annually as on 31% March a simple declaration from the Directors the
information already provided has not undergone change and where there is any change, requisite
details are furnished by them forthwith.

The Company shall ensure in public interest that the nominated/elected directors execute the
deeds of covenants in the Format provided under the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
from time to time.

2. Term / Tenure

a)

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be
made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.



b) Independent Director:

e An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

e No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upte maximum
of 5 years each, but such independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of
three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director
shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company
in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

e At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards
on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed
under the Act.

3. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

4. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules
and regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

5. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel:-
1.Remuneration to Managing/Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel:

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc.
shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any
other enactment for the time being in force.



2.Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as
per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits
as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the
time being in force.

Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

e Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior
Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

e Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

¢ ldentifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;
¢ Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

e Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the
plan;

e Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the
Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

e Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive

Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

* Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;

¢ Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

* Scrutinize the declarations received from directors and based on the information provided in the
signed declaration, the Committee shall decide on the acceptance or otherwise of the Directors,
where considered necessary;

s Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Duties In Relation To Remuneration Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

e Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing
in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members
of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the
remuneration of the members of the Board.




® Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including KMP of the Company
maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.

e Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

e Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

Review and Amendment:
i.  The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

ii. ~ The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement and better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary.

iii.  This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required

and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the
change in the policy.
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Scope of Committees:

Given below are the various committees proposed of the Board of the Company. This document details
the scope of the various committees. The purpose of the committees is to have more focused oversight
on the respective areas for better corporate governance. The following 7 (seven) committees and their
scope are in line with the Companies act, 2013, RBI Guidelines and Industry best practices:

The scope or any of the authorizations here, if repugnant with the constitutional documents of the
company, or any changed regulatory norms, shall be over-ruled by the constitution documents and
changed regulatory norm, as applicable from time to time.

1) AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

Internal

a. To oversee the internal audit, compliance and financial reporting process and ensuring correct,
adequate and credible disclosure of financial information, at stipulated frequency (monthly,
quarterly, annually) as per extant regulatory & statutory guidelines.

b. To examine the efficacy of audit functions and systems and suggesting steps on a periodic basis
(quarterly, half yearly) for its improvement.

¢. To report, on a quarterly basis, the key audit findings for the quarter, as well as the actions

taken report on the same for previous quarters to the Board of the Company.

To do valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

To evaluate internal financial controls

To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters

To review and recommend accounting policies and treatment — including decisions regarding

write-offs.

h. To get Information Systems Audit conducted and track implementation of accepted
recommendations/ corrective action.

@ o o

External

a. To facilitate in smooth conduct of audits by external agencies, Statutory Auditors, Reserve Bank
of India (RBI), lenders and any other external auditors as appointed by the Company or any
other stakeholder (lenders, shareholders, regulators, government etc.)

b. To review with management, verifying and recommending adoption of quarterly, half yearly and
annual accounts to Board of the company with special emphasis on accounting policies and
practices, provisioning norms adopted by the company and any amendments adopted during
the year, adherence to capital adequacy norms, compliance with accounting standard and other
requirements concerning financial statements that may arise.

c. Toreport, on a quarterly basis, the key findings of the quarter, as well as the action taken report
on the same for previous quarters, to the Board of Directors.

d. To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and
auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution and
to update the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter;
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Compliance

a.

To prepare a calendar detailing the list of compliances/ covenants that needs to be monitored
and the frequency of its reporting to the Board of the Company as well as the regulatory
agencies and the stakeholders.

To review statement of significant related party transactions and examination of the reasons for
substantial defaults, if any, in payment to stakeholders.

To review compliance within stipulated statutory and regulatory requirements particularly in
relation to financial management and reporting.

To review compliance of various inspections and audit reports of internal, concurrent and
statutory auditors and commenting on the action taken report prepared by the management
and ensuring submission to the Board of the Company from time to time — classified under
heads for major/ material and minor and also set timelines if the compliance is still to be met.
To review the consolidated compliance report and the final accounting system for the financial
year before it is submitted to the Board of the Company for adoption.

To internalize guidelines issued by the regulator specifically for the NBFCs or any other
guidelines as may be relevant to the Company and monitor adherence to the same.

Administrative

a.

b.

To recommend appointment and removal of external auditors on company’s request, or as
mandated by the regulators, lenders or other stakeholders.

To review and recommend a scope of audit on the basis of requirements and reviewing the
policies, procedures, techniques and findings of such audits.

To oversee that contracted fees are paid to the various audit firms, at stipulated frequency on
receipt of their reports.

To establish procedures for receipt and treatment of complaints regarding accounting and
auditing matters and engage independent counsel, if required, for such conflict resolution.
Updating the Board of the Company on the status of the same, every quarter.

2)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Nomination

a.

b.

To guide and assist the Board and work out a policy and implement it besides monitoring
progress in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP),
Senior Management and Credit Committee members.
i.  Torecommend to the Board appointment of directors. To develop a succession plan for
the Board and to regularly review the plan
ii.  To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report
to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.
iii. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director in line with the prevailing regulatory guidelines.
iv.  Torecommend appointments of senior management to the Board of the company.
To review and advise the management on the organization structure, including creating a two
tire organization structure for smooth succession planning and operational backups.
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C.

To objectively examine the annual manpower plan in relation to the business plan of the
company and to examine management recommendations regarding manpower strategy and
suggest corrective action, if required.

Remuneration

a.

e.

To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other
employees and Credit Committee members.

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior
Management and Credit Committee members.

To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

To evaluate and approve the compensation packages of above mentioned persons with
particular reference to fixed and variable pay (including bonuses and Employees Stock Options).
To guide the management in developing a balanced remuneration policy with no biases and
focus and enhancing performance drivers and motivation levels of the employees with a view to
attract, retain, promote and groom/ train employees. This shall also include considering grant of
stock options to employees, reviewing compensation levels of the employees vis- a- vis other
NBFCs and industry in general and create competitive advantage.

3) RISK COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Risk Control

a.

To review company’s risk management policies in relation to various risks (credit, market,
liquidity, operational and reputation risk)
To review the risk return profile of the Company, Capital adequacy based on risk profile of the
company’s balance sheet, business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan, key risk indicators
and significant risk exposures and implementations of enterprise risk management.
To hold such risk reviews to ensure adequate monitoring as may be felt necessary by the
internal as well as external stakeholders and to appraise the Board of the Company on a periodic
basis. This shall cover:
i.  To review performance of credit risk in the business and portfolio using risk assessment
tools
ii.  To review and approve the risk rating tool, performance of portfolio on the tool and
review the tool’s efficacy periodically
ii.  To review stress in portfolio, and recommend corrective measures and policy level
changes based on portfolio performance
iv.  To review performance against the exposure norms and make recommendations to the
board based on outlook of business
To give oversight to the Credit Committee (CC) and review and take note of minutes of CC
meetings. Risk Committee at its discretion may call one or any of the CC members when they
feel it is desired for any specific discussions.
Review portfolio against the exposure norms and credit delegation and give approvals based on
authority delegated by the Board. When the portfolio deviates from the credit quality metric as
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per the business plan (loan loss provisioning and write-off as per the approved budget), then the
CC will have discretion to limit approvals to some of the areas showing stresses.

Fraud Control and Monitoring

a.

To monitor and review all frauds that may have occurred in the company and involves an
amount of Rs. 0.1 million and above or as decided from time to time.

To report such frauds and other flag-offs to stakeholders along with the extent of losses. This
would include reviewing and recommending a calendar of reporting frauds and the remedial
measures taken, to the Board of the Company.

To conduct a root cause analysis and identify the systemic lacunae, if any, that may have
facilitated perpetration of the fraud and put in place measures to rectify the same. Also, to
ascertain reasons for delay in detection of such frauds, if any.

To ensure the staff accountability is examined at all levels in all the cases of frauds and actions,
if required, is completed quickly without loss of time.

To review of efficacy of remedial actions taken to prevent recurrence of frauds, such as
strengthening internal controls and putting in place other measures as may be considered
relevant to strengthen preventive measure.

Vigil Mechanism

a.

To recommend Vigil Mechanism to the board and monitor its progress and implementation and
efficacy and recommend changes to the same from time to time.

To ensure that the Vigilance Mechanism is adequate for the directors and employees to report
their genuine concerns. Such Vigil Mechanism should provide adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and they should have a direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate cases.

4)

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

To put in place an effective liquidity management policy, including, inter alia, the funding
strategies, liquidity planning under alternative crisis scenarios, prudential limits and review the
same periodically.

To articulate the interest rate view of the company and decide the pricing methodology for
advances in line with extant regulatory guidelines.

To oversee the implementation of the Asset Liability Management (ALM) system and review the
functioning periodically and to ensure that the decisions taken on financial strategy are in line
with the objectives of the committee.

To review the management of balance sheet of the Company within the risk parameters laid
down by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof, with a view to manage the current
income as well as to take steps for enhancing the same.

To review the capital & profit planning and growth projections of the company in line with the
business plan and ensure that the same is reported to the Board of the Company.

To consider and recommend any other matter related to liquidity and market risk management
including matters that might be required by the lenders or any other regulatory body to ensure
that the same is recommended to the Board of Directors of the Company for suitable action.
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5) PRODUCT, PROCESS, CREDIT POLICY & GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

Product and Process

a. To review from time to time the suite of products run by the company covering its fulfillment
process within the regulatory compliance norms, customer service quality, viability and
profitability within the objectives of the company

b. To approve new products {including pilots and full scale rollouts) and rolling out of business in
new geographies in which products (new as well as existing) can be rolled out.

c. To set up standard operating processes with regard to the products and ensure that these are
being reviewed and strengthened by the management

d. To monitor adherence to the process compliances by internal as well as third-party evaluations.

Credit Policy

a. To review and recommend credit policy framework in line with the stipulated guidelines of the
Board and other extant regulatory and statutory guidelines for conduct of business.

b. To recommend setting up of delegation of functional powers for staff to the Board of the
Company for suitable action.

c. To consider and approve any other matter related to the credit policy including matters that

might be required by the Board or any other regulatory body.

Customer Service and Grievance Redressal

a.

To review the customer service initiatives, overseeing the functioning of the customer service
council and evolving innovative measures for enhancing the quality of customer service and
improvement in the overall satisfaction level of customers.

To review and recommend a customer grievance redressal policy in line with extant regulatory
and statutory guidelines which shall include, among other things, the contact details of the
employees responsible, the turn-around-time stipulated for addressing the grievances, the
escalation mechanism etc and to ensure that this policy is available for reference all branches of
the company.

To set up a grievance redressal mechanism to address the complaints of the customers and
report a synopsis of such complaints received to the Board of the company on a quarterly basis.

6) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Executive Committee serves as an administrative committee of the Board to facilitate approval of
certain operational corporate actions that do not require consideration by the full Board. In normal
course of business, Executive Committee is delegated with following authorisations -

a.

To make applications for obtaining licenses, registrations, connections, clearances, services etc.
and to authorize/appoint company directors/employees/officers for signing applications,
returns, forms, bonds, agreements, documents, papers etc. and for representing Company
before the authorities under various Laws including but not limited to Corporate Laws, Industrial
Laws, Tax Laws, Labour Laws and other business laws applicable to the Company in respect of all

5
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present and future offices of the Company for compliance of all provisions, rules, clauses,
regulations, directives and other related matters under the said Laws, which may be applicable
to the Company.

To open/close account with any bank and to authorize and reauthorize any employee of the
Company to operate the account.

To authorize company person(s) for execution of documents, including loan documents and
affixing common seal of the company thereon, if required.

To invest funds of the company in the Fixed Deposits to the extent necessary to avail credit
facilities/ loans from the Banks/ Financial Institutions etc. and to invest surplus/ idle funds in
liquid funds (i.e. mutual funds etc.) for short term as per the Board approved investment policy
of the company.

To incur capital expenditure outside the annual business plan up to a limit of Rs.10 lakhs
between two board meetings.

To apply for telephone connection or to disconnect.

Delegation of borrowing powers

g.

To apply for loan and hypothecate book debts of the Company at such terms and conditions as
may be decided by the committee from time to time within the borrowing powers delegated by
Shareholders to the board and board to the Executive Committee (documented below).

To apply for portfolio sell-down or securitization within the limits approved by the board and
the shareholders at such terms and conditions as may be decided by the committee from time
to time, subject to reporting to the board in the next board meeting.

To review and recommend, seek and operate borrowing and investment limits delegated from
the board (subject to delegation by Shareholders to the Board in the latest AGM/ EGM)

i.  To borrow the moneys subject to a maximum of Rs. 30 Crore per facility/ loan.

ii.  Tosell orsecuritise portfolio of the Company upto a limit of Rs. 20 crore per sanction.

iii. To purchase book debts or securitized paper of other Companies/ SPVs upto a limit of
10% of networth of company per transaction aggregating to not more than 25% of
netwroth as on date of reckoning.

iv.  Toissue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) upto a limit of Rs. 50 crore per sanction.
The terms of all such transactions — including the term loans, securitization, asset sale, or NCD
issuance should be within limits approved by the board.

Summary of each of such sale, securitization, purchase, subscription of securitized paper should
be placed before the board in next ensuing board meeting.

Emergency response
The Executive Committee exercise powers of the Board in the event that an emergency or other
time sensitive matter arises and in it not practicable to assemble the entire Board.

Corporate Governance

a.
b.

To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.
To review the status of company on various corporate governance related norms, guidelines and
industry best practices and recommend action to the Board and to the Management to improve
the practices.
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7) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

a. To establishment and review of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policies and programs and
compliances wrt to the Companies Act on CSR matters

b. To review and evaluate the adequacy of its charter and recommend to the Board any proposed
changes.

¢. To review annual budgets with respect to CSR and review its utilization. The Board shall ensure
that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits
of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of
its CSR guidelines under the companies Act and any changes there-under.

d. To ensure that the CSR program includes significant sustainable development, community
relations and security policies and procedures

e. To have an oversight on implementation of CSR policies and programs

f. To review the findings and recommendations from any investigation or audit by regulatory
agencies or external auditors or consultants concerning the Company’s CSR matters; and

g. To review the Company’s disclosure of corporate social responsibility matters in the Company’s
continuous disclosure documents and any annual social responsibility report.

h. To have the power to obtain advice and assistance from outside legal or other advisors in its sole
discretion.

i. To annually evaluate its performance and report the results of such evaluation to the Board.

-x end of document x-
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FORM AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contract / arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

(a) Name(s} of the related party and nature of | NIL
relationship

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /| NiL
transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | NiL
transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or | NIL
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contract / | NiL
arrangement or transaction

(f) Date(s) of approval of the Board NIL
(g) Amount paid in advance, if any NIL
(h) Date on which the special resolution was | NIL
passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: The following two
contracts or arrangements or transactions are at arm’s length basis:
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Intellecash Microfinance Network Company
relationship Private Limited
Mr. Anurag Agrawal is director and shareholder
in Intellecash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Term Loan Agreement dated 31-Aug-2016

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The duration of contract shall be for the period
of two years commencing from 31-Aug-2016 to
10-Oct-2018

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Facility amount of Rs. 4,00,00,000/- sanctioned

on following terms & conditions:

* Processing Fee: 1% of the Facility Amount;

* |[nterest Rate: 17.70%

* Four undated security cheques collected as
security

(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 26-May-2016
{f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
(g) Date on which the special resolution was | 26-May-2016

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188




2.i.

{(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

intellecash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited
Mr. Anurag Agrawal is director and shareholder
in Intellecash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Term Loan Agreement dated 28-0Oct-2016

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The duration of contract shall be for the period
of 3 years commencing from 28-Oct-2016 to 10-
Mar-2019

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Facility amount of Rs. 2,00,00,000/- sanctioned
on following terms & conditions:

s Processing Fee: 1% of the Facility Amount;

e Interest Rate: 17.70%

s Four undated security cheques collected as

security
{e) Date(s) of approval of the Board 26-May-2016
{f) Amount paid in advance, if any Nil
{g) Date on which the special resolution was | 26-May-2016

passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

2.1l

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai is a shareholder in the
said company.

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Capital Advisory Contract dated 06-Feb-2017

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The duration of contract shall be for the period
of one year commencing from 06-Feb-2017 to
05-Feb-2018

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Phase | — preparation of investor kit

a) Refining of the existing business
plan/financial model and preparatory work
required to present Client to prospective
investors.

b) Compilation of Information Kit for investors
that might include all or some of the following:
Information Memorandum, Introductory Flyer,
Financial Model and any other supporting
documents and/or presentations as required for
raising funds of Client.

Phase 1l — Capital Advisory Services

a) ldentification of suitable investors, creating a
fong list of investors and short list of investors.
b) Managing communication with all the
investors that would include the investment
pitch, deal structuring and negc_)tiéii@h_ support
to the Company. e




c) Assistance in due diligence by potential
investors.

d) Advice and execution of appropriate deal
structuring as per the needs and expectations of
the Company and accounting for investor
feedback

e) Assistance in drafting the term sheet and
subscription agreement.

Success Fee:

i. Book value multiple less than 3.0x — the
success fee shall be 1.5% of the Equity
Investment amount committed by the investors
towards primary issue of shares (exclusive of
service tax).

ii. Book value multiple less than 3.0x — the
success fee shall be 2% of the Equity Investment
amount committed by the investors towards
primary issue of shares (exclusive of service tax).

(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board

15-Dec-2016

(f) Amount paid in advance, if any

Nil

(g) Date on which the special resolution was
passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

15-Dec-2016

2.iv.

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Intellecash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited
Mr. Anurag Agrawal is director and shareholder
in Intellecash Microfinance Network Company
Private Limited

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements /
transactions

Agreement for Purchase of assets

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements /
transactions

The date of execution of Agreement is 03-Jul-
2017

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

To transfer all furniture, fixtures and office
equipment of the company at Rs.45lac to
Rs.50lac depending on written down value of all
assets, being transferred as on the transfer date

(e) Date(s) of approval of the Board

15-Dec-2016

{f) Amount paid in advance, if any

Nil

(g} Date on which the special resolution was
passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

15-Dec-2016
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Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on financial year ended as on 31-Mar-2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]
l. Registration and Other Details:

SiNo. [Pamcuars. B TR
1 CIN U65910AP1998PLC088941

2 Registration Date 05-Feb-1998

3 Name of the company Jain Sons Finlease Limited

4 Address of the Registered | 1002, 10" Floor, A Block, The Platina, Gachibowli, Hyderabad —
office and contact details 500032, Telangana.

Tel: 040 40300200; Fax: 040 40300275
Email id: chirag.desai@intellegrow.com

Website: www.intellegrow.com

5 Address of the Corporate office | 13C, 6™ Floor, Techniplex-Il IT Park, Off. Veer Savarkar Flyover,
and contact details Goregaon (West), Mumbai — 400062, Maharashtra.

Tel: 022 61952700; Fax: 022 61952702

Email id: chirag.desai@intellegrow.com

Website: www.intellegrow.com

6 Whether listed Company Yes (Non-Convertible Debentures are Listed with BSE)

7 Name, Address and Contact | Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. (For Non-Convertible
details of Registrar and | Debentures)
Transfer Agent, if any Category | Registrar to Issue & Share Transfer Agents

B-302 Sony Apartment, Opp. St Jude High School, 90 Feet Road,
Jarimari, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072.

Il. Principal Business Activities of the company:

All the busmess activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

‘Sl No. ‘. 'Name and Desc rption of mat o ~ NIC Code of the % to total. turnover of
L o ‘,.;products/sémces o e Product/Servsce e the rompany

1 FmanCIaI Services 804. 9 100%

lll. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

SI. | Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding % of Equity Applicable
No. Company /Subsidiary | shares held section
/Associate
1 | Intellectual Capital U74999TG2002PTCQ75765 Holding 54.70 2(87)(ii)
Advisory Services Private
Limited




Share holding pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity):

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Pnn

Category of shareholders No, of shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year % change during
Demat Physical Total % of Total shares Demat Physical Total % of Total the year
shares
A. Promoter
(1) Indian
() Individual /HUF 0 1,00,000 1,00,000 0.91 0| - - - (0.91)

b) Central Govt. Q 0 0 - 0 0 Q - -

c) State Govts. 0 1] 0 - s} 0 0 - -
{{d) Bodies Corp. Q 59,99,995 59,99,995 54.70 o 59,399,995 59,99,995 54.70 -

e) Banks / FI 9 - - - g - - - -
[() Others .. 0| . - - o - - - -
Sub-tatal (A)(1) 0 60,99,935 60,99,995 55.61 0] 58,99,935 59,99,995 54.70 {0.91)
{2) Foreign - - -

a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0! - [ 0 [ - -
|{b) Other - Individuals 0 o} [ - Q 0 0. - -
{¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 [ - 0| 0 0 - -

d} Banks / Fi Q o [} - 0 4] 1] - -

e} Others ......... o 0 [} - 0! 0 0 - -
Sub-tatal (A)(2) Q 0! [ - [s} 1] 0 - -
Total shareholding of promoters (A) 0 60,99,995 60,99,995 55.61 [ 59,99,935 59,99,995 54.70 (0.91]
8. Public - - -
{1} Institutions Q 4] ] - [ 0 1) - -
{a) Mutual Funds 0 1] 0 - Q 0 0 - -

b) Banks / F! Q o [ - [l 1] [} - -

c) Central Govt, [] 0 0| - 0 4] 9 - -

d) State Govts, [] 0 [¢] - 0 i} 0 - -

) Venture Capital Funds 0 ] 0 - ] 2] 0 - -

f) insurance Companies 1] 0 0 - Q 0 0 - -

g) Flls 4] 0 0 - 0| 1Y Q - -

h} Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 - 1] ] 0 - -

(i} Others ......... 0 0 1] - 0 [+] 0 - -
Sub-total (B}(1) ) 0 0 - 0 of [ - -
{2) Non Institutions - - -

2} Bodies Corp. - - -

i) Indian 0 10,00,000 10,00,000 9.12 - 8,80,593 8,80,593 8.03 (1.09)|

ii) Overseas 0 - - - - - - - -

b} Individuals* . - -

(i} individual shareholders holding nominal 0 11,501 11,501 o110 - 11,501 11,501 0.10 0.00
share capital upto Rs. 1 Lakh
{ii) Individual shareholders holding nominat 0 11,66,505 11,66,505 10.63 - 1,56,501 1,56,50L 143 (9.21)
share capital in excess of Rs. 1 Lakh
{c) Others - Foreign Companies 0 26,91,347 26,591,347 24.54 - 39,20,758 39,20,758 3574 11.21
Sub-total (8)(2) o 48,69,353 48,69,353 44.39 - 49,69,353 49,69,353 45.30 0.91
Total Public Sharehoding(B) () 48,69,353 48,69,353 44.39 - 49,69,353 49,69,353 45.30 0.91
C. Shares held by cusodian for GDRs & - - -
ADRs

0 - - - - -
Grand Total {A+B+C) [ 1,09,69,348 1,09,69,348 100.00 - 1,09,69,348 1,09,69,348 100.00 0.00
i, Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. of shares % of total shares | % of shares No. of shares % of total % of shares | share helding
of the Company Pledged shares of the Pledged during the year|
[encumbered to] Company fencumbered
total shares to total shares

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private 59,99,995 55.47 0 58,99,995 55.47 0 0.00%

Limited
Vineet Rai 1,00,000 0.92 0 - 0.00 " 0.00%

Total 60,99,995 56.39 i 59,99,995 55.47 0 0.00%|



iv. Shareholding Pattern of top 10 shareholders (other than Directors, promoters and holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding

Cumuiative sha?'eho|ding during
year (01-04-16 to 31-03-17)

No. of shares at the Increase/ 1
Name of shareholder e % of total Date Decreasein  Reason !
beginning (01-04- . 1% of total shares
shares of the shareholding No. of shares. |
16} / end of the f the company
year(31-03-17)  °TPeY
26,91,247 24.53] 01-Apr-16
1 {Michael and Susan Dell Foundation 06-May-16 -17,21,722 | Transfer 9,69,525 8.84
9,69,525 8.84| 31-Mar-17 -17,21,722 | Transfer 9,69,525 8.84
Intellecash Microfinance Network 10,00,000 9.12| 01-Apr-16
2 . L 15-Dec-16 -10,00,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
Company Private Limited
0 0.00] 31-Mar-17 -10,00,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
1,00,000 0.91] 01-Apr-16 Nil
3 |Nitin Agrawal - {movemen
1,00,000 0.91] 31-Mar-17 - t 1,00,000 0.91
75,001 0.68] 01-Apr-16
4 |Manoj Kumar Nambiar 11-Nov-16 -75,001 | Transfer o] 0.00
0 0.00| 31-Mar-17 -75,001 | Transfer ¢} 0.00
50,001 0.46| 01-Apr-16
5 |Atreya Rayaprolu 11-Nov-16 -50,001 | Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.00] 31-Mar-17 -50,001 | Transfer 0 0.00
50,000 0.46] 01-Apr-16
6 [Swati Rai 11-Nov-16 -50,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.00| 31-Mar-17 -50,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
44,001 0.40] 01-Apr-16 Nil
7 {Rajan Juneja - movemen
44,001 0.40| 31-Mar-17 - t 44,001 0.40
12,500 0.11} 01-Apr-16 Nil
8 |Rushir Shah - |movemen
12,500 0.11] 31-Mar-17 - t 12,500 0.11
9,500 0.08] 01-Apr-16 Nit
9 |Pratik Mandvia - Imovemen
9,500 0.09] 31-Mar-17 - t 9,500 0.09
2,000 0.02] 01-Apr-16 Nil
10 |Akshit Gupta - |movemen
2,000 0.02| 31-Mar-17 - t 2,000 0.02

v. Shareholding of Directors and KMPs

Shareholding

Cumulative shareholiding during

No. of shares at the % of total Increase/ 1
Name of shareholder beginning (01-04- ° Decreasein  Reason 1% of total shares
shares of the R No. of shares |
16} / end of the compan shareholding i of the company
year (31-03-17) pany |
8,10,001 7.38| 01-Apr-16
1 |sanjib kumar Jha 06-May-16 -5,80,590 | Transfer 2,28,411 2.08
17-Oct-16 -2,29,411 | Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.00] 31-Mar-17 -8,10,001 | Transfer 0 0.00
1,00,000 0.91| 01-Apr-16
2 |Vineet Chandra Rai -1,00,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.00| 31-Mar-17 ~1,00,000 | Transfer 0 0.00
1,00,000 0.91} 01-Apr-16 Nil
3 [Nitin Agrawal - |movemen
1,00,000 0.91] 31-Mar-17 - t 1,00,000 0.91
25,001 0.23| 01-Apr-16
4 |Anurag Agrawal -25,001 | Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.00] 31-Mar-17 -25,001 | Transfer 0 0.00




Indebtedness:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accured but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

1,29,94,34,741

1,28,94,34,741

i} interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

3,68,62,622

3,68,62,622

Total {i+ii+iii)

1,33,62,97,363

1,33,62,97,363

Changes in indebtedness during the
financial year

> Addition 1,20,30,00,000 - 1,20,30,00,000
> Reduction 78,67,95,608 - 78,67,95,609
Net Change 41,62,04,391 - 41,62,04,391

Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

1,71,56,39,132

1,71,56,39,132

i} {nterest due but not paid

iii} Interest accrued but not due

4,77,65,117

4,77,65,117

Total {i+ii+iii)

1,76,34,04,249

1,76,34,04,249




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A, Remuneration to MD / WTD / Manager

Sk No. Particulars of i Name of MD / WTD / Manager
1 2 3 a Total Amount
Sanjib Kumar ftha - - -
{upto 30-Sep-2016}
Gross Salary: - - -
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 30,75,000 - - - 30,75,000

1 17{1)} of the Income Tax Act, 1961
{b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2} of the Income - - - - -
Tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - - -

2 Stock Option 0 - - - -

3 Sweat Equity Q - - - -

4 Commission - - -

- as % of profits 1] - - - -
- others, specify 0: - - - -

5 Others, specify - - - -
Total 30,75,000 - - - 30,75,000
Ceiling as per the Act 84,00,000 - - - 84,00,000

8. Remuneration to other directors
Sl No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of director
1 2 3 4 Total Amount
1 Independent Directors Rakesh Rewari Bhama
Krishnamurthy

Fees for fing board / i i 4,50,000 6,10,000 [} (o] 10,60,000
Commission Q a 0 0! -
Travelling a 1] 0 g -
Total (1) 4,560,000 6,10,000 ] Q 10,60,000

2 Other Non-Executive Directors Vineet Chandra Rai Anurag Agrawal
Fees for attending board / committee meetings 2,70,000 3,90,000 0 0 6,60,000
Commission o k1] 0 4] 4]
Others, please specify Q 0 0 0 0
Total {2) 2,70,000 3,90,000 4] 0 6,60,000
Total (1+2) - 7,20,000 10,00,000 0 0. 17,20,000.
Total Managetial Remuneration 7,20,000 10,00,000 Q 1] 17,20,000:
Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - - - -

C. Remuneration to KMPs other than MD / Manager / WTD
Sl. No. Particulars of d Kmep
CEO CEO CFO [+ Total Amount
Sanjib Kumar Jha Akbar Khan Nitin Agrawal Chirag Desai
{upto 30-Sep-2016) | {w.e.f. 07-Nov-
2016)

1 Gross Salary:
(a) Satary as per provisions contained in Section 30,75,000 21,01,302 76,91,350 18,85,900
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income - - - - -
Tax Act, 1961
{c} Profits in fieu of salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - - - - -
Tax Act, 1961

2 Stack Option - - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - - -

4 Commission - - - - -

- as % of profits - - - - -
- others, specify - - - - -
5 Others, specify - - - - -
Total 30,75,000 21,01,302 76,91,350 18,85,900 1,47,53,552
PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the Brief Description| Details of penalty /| Authority [RD | Appeal made, if any
Companies Act punishment / /NCLT/ Court] {give details)
Compounding fees
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty - ~ - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding Company had 1,99,700 NCLT NA
entered into
Related Party
297 of Companies Act, {Trasanction
1956 without taking
prior approval of
Regional Director]
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - R -
Compounding Company had 1,99,700 NCLT NA ;
entered into
Related Party
297 of Companies Act, [Trasanction
1956 without taking
prior approval of
Regional Directorl|
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - - :
Punishment - . K N B . 3 o
Compounding - - . - . T
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. Office No. 2,
M B aldeva AS SOCIateS Tirupati Darshan Bidg. No. 2 CHS Ltd.,
Balaji Nagar, Station Road,
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 9 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4]

To,
The Members,
Jain Sons Finlease Limited

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Jain Sons Finlease Limited(hereinafter called ‘the
Company’). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluation the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Companyhas, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31 March 2017 (‘Audit Period’)generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Companyfor the financial year ended on 31 March, 2017 according to the
provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
i,  The Securities Contract (Regulation} Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
ii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment-and
External Commercial Borrowings{not applicable to the Company during the Audit

period};

Secretarial Audit Report/JSFL/2016-17
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v, The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'}):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011(not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015(not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

¢ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009(not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period};

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations,2014 {not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of tndia {issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrar to an lssue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
the client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009{not applicable to the Company during the Audit period), and;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998({not applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi.  Other laws, including the law relating to Non-Banking Financial Companies to the
extent applicable to the Company as per representation made by the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) SecretarialStandards {SS-1 and $$-2)issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India.
(i) The Debt Listing Agreement entered by the Company with BSE Limited, Mumbai.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above except-

(a) non-fiting and delayed filing of certain e-forms with ROC;

(b) non-submission and delayed submission of certain intimation, information or disclosures as
required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and

(c) delay in filling ALM -2 return for the half year ended 30" September,2016.

Secretarial Audit Report/ISFL/2016-17
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| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Director / CEO, Non —Executive Directors and Independent Directors.The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimouslyas
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board,
as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
faws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

{ further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Auditsince the same have been subject to
review by statutory auditors-and other designated professionals.

{ further report that during the audit period:

a. The Company has adopted the new set of Articles of Associations in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on 6" May, 2016;

b. On 6™ May, 2016, the Company has issued and allotted 58,49,966 Series C Compulsory
Convertible Prefererice Shares of Rs.10/- each at an issue prices of Rs. 87.18 per share
(including premium of Rs.77.18 per share)amounting to Rs. 51.00Crores on Private
Placement basis;

¢. The Company has obtained approval of members under Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 to enter into transactions with related parties in the Annual General Meeting held on
26" May, 2016 and Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 15" December, 2016;

d. On 14" June, 2016, the Company has issued and allotted 1330 Rated, Listed, Taxable,
Transferable, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 1,00,000/- each aggregating
to Rs.13.30Crores on a private placement basis;

e. The Company has obtained approval of members for offer and issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures upto amounting Rs.150.00 Crores on Private Placement basis in Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on 20" September, 2016; and

Secretarial Audit Report/ISFL/2016-17
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£ On 17" November, 2016, the Company has issued and allotted 4000 Rated, Listed, Taxable,
Transferable, Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000/- each aggregating
to Rs.40.00Crores on a private placement basis.

For M Baldeva Associates
Campany Secretaries
Wa\v&m\

CS Manish Baldeva
Proprietor
M. No.6180, CP No.11062

Place: Thane
Date: 24" May, 2017

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-| and forms
an integral part of this report.

Secretarial Audit Report/JSFL/2016-17
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Annexure -1
To,
The Members,
Jain Sons Finlease Limited

My report of even date is to read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

2. 1have followed the audit practices and. processes.as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done an test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. |
believe that the processes and practices, | followed, provided a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

3. 1 have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happeriing of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Carporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on the test basis.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For M BaldevaAssociates
Company Secretaries
S—eYy

CS Manish Baldeva
Proprietor
M. No.6180, CP No.11062

Place: Thane
Date: 24" May, 2017

Page 5 of 5
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a. Industry structure and developments:

Impact enterprises include those “For Profit” enterprises who serve under-served beneficiaries
including the producers, consumers, suppliers, employees and / or entrepreneurs. Impact enterprises
typically look to cater to such segments which may not be purely financially lucrative but actually look
to address wider social issues through commercial activities in addition to generating financial gains
for the stakeholders involved.

gy
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0 AGRI-BUSINESS AND LIVELIHOOD SECTORS e opportunity of financial gains along

with positive economic,

environmental and social impact created through their funding.

For the growing social and economic needs of India, social sector plays an important role. Economic
growth in India has not able to touch the lives at last mile and with increase in socio-economic
disparities, there is more focus on the market based approach to tackle the challenges.

b. Opportunities:

The SGB industry in India involves over Rs. 7 trillion investment in fixed assets. These small and growing
businesses (SGBs) usually require working capital and term debt facilities to address business growth
needs. Obtaining funds to continue operations is the biggest hurdle that these SGBs face. The
traditional bank and NBFCs lending format is to give collateral backed loans to such enterprises. Also,
these have to be established businesses with a profitable track record by entrepreneurs who are well
versed in their respective fields. Financial institutions have traditionally limited their exposure to this
sector due to the perception that these businesses carry high risk and high cost of delivery, and have
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limited access to immovable collateral. In this scenario, most of the SGBs become ineligible to borrow
from these traditional lenders and thus resort to borrowing from private sources with exorbitant and
exploitative interest rates going up to 3-5 percent per month. Alternately, they raise equity thereby
diluting their shareholding. They have a low negotiating power on valuation if their requirement of
funds is urgent or their track record is still building or the business model is still getting refined. A brief
summary of the identified debt gap to such small and medium enterprises in India is shown as under:

"The Missing Middle"

| Total Debt Gap

Small Enterprises

" Debt Gap Analysis
8333

11,333

Warking Capitel {61% of gap) | Term Loan {és%ef gap) e ,

IntelleGrow's target segment 1~

The following table sums up the existing gap in the lending space to SGBs in India which IntelleGrow
is serving through its unique proposition.

Table 1 SME debt fmancmg sector ana/yS/s

Cur

1t Gap / Market Scopmg'ﬂ

zes by existing players |

Opportunities for venture
o debt like lntelleGrow

(SGBs) form a significant part of
the Missing Middle

In existence between 1-4 years
Limited operational and
financial track record

Limited ability to provide hard
collateral

Small and Growing Businesses

Lack of collateral

Lack of flexible
structures

High processing and approval
time

High transaction costs do not
allow developing a profitable
business model

Lack of financial transparency
poses risks that they are not
equipped to mitigate

repayment

Viability-based approach to
lending

Flexible and customized loan
products designed to suit the
business model of borrower
SGBs

Fast turn-around time as
compared to other lenders in
the industry.

Lack of collateral and highly
profitable track record is not
a disqualifier for a loan from
IntelleGrow

. Risks and Concerns:

e N

Execution for building book & stagnation avoidance;

¢ Portfolio Quality, ring fence portfolio from further slippages;

e Enhancement in credit rating;

e Need to strengthen monitoring function to really track and report risk triggers;
¢ Templatize and standardize to increase productivity.
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d. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

e Interestincome up by 52%

e Loan processing fees up by 90%

e Finance costs increased by 19% while the book increased by 66% owing to equity raise

e Added 2 new borrowers which included an NCD transaction with Calvert Foundation backed by
OPIC.

e Held undrawn sanctions from 2 more lenders which include Kotak Mahindra Bank and a new
NBFC.

e Lowered borrowing costs to 13.35% IRR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To the Members of Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jain Sons Finlease Limited {‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the maiters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indig, including the
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of india as
applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other frregularities; selfection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were aperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisicns of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the E{Ui}e_s ‘made thereunder.

Chartersd Accountants . 5, 0 0 L oo Walker Chandick & Do 1P s reglstered with Smited R2biity
with ideaiiircation number ARC-2085 and its regislered

Offices In Bongalur, Chandigarh, Channdi, Gurgaon, Hydarabsad, Kokiota, Minb, New DR, Nesda and Pune ofioa at L41 Connzughl Circus, New Db, 110001, indiz




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Thase Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order {o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the everali presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for curaudit opinion on these financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given te us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give & true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017, and its profit and its cash flows jor
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

§. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matlers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

a. we have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which fo the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. the financial statements dealf with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules,
2014 (as amended);

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Direcfors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2}) of the Act;

f. we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as on
31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and our report dated 24 May 2017 as per Annexure B expresses an
unmodified opinion; and

g. with respect to the other matters ta be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in cur opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L ﬂi’e_Company, as detailed in Note 36 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
W cteending liigations on its financial position;

Chartsrad Accountants
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ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

i, there were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv.  the Company, as detailed in Note 35 to the financial statements, has made requisite
disclosures in these financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes during the pericd from 8 Novemnber 2016 fo 30 December 2016. Based on the audit
procedures performed and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to
us, in our opinion, these are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the

company.

Wodte. Uk {totid
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 ]

Mf.l L/:.J \fQ';l ‘ /$T

per Nikhil Vaid 12
Partner (B k
Membership No.; 213356\,

T
\Q\ ’i’_‘!

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2017

Charterad Atcountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jain Sons
Finlease Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Based an the audit procedures performed far the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowiedge and belief, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(W)

(v}
(V)

(vii)

Charterad Accountants

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

{b)

(c)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were noticed an such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets.

The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3{i)}{c) of the Order are not applicable,

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of
the Order are not applicable.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to a company covered in the register
maintained under Secticn 182 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

in our opinion, the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayment of the principal amount and the interest are regular,

there is no overdue amcunt in respect of loans granted to such company.

tn our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections
185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{iv} of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not specified mainfenance of cost records under sub-
section {1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the
provisions of cltause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
cther material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to
the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in few cases. Further,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were ouistanding at the year-end for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(viil)

(ix}

(x)

(xi)

(xii}

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

Chartered Accountants

{0)

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duiy of customs, duty of
excise and value added fax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Statute | Nature of Amount () | Period to | Forum where
dues which dispute is
amount pending
relaies
Income Tax Act 1961 | Income Tax 3,271,689 | 201314 Commissioner
of lhcome
Tax-ll
Income Tax Act 18681 | Income Tax 173,400 | 2012-13 Not
applicable

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a government during the year. The
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank and financial
institution or any dues to debenture-holders during the year,

During the vear, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer {including debt instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were
applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained, though idle/surplus funds
which were not reguired for immediate utilization have been invested in liquid
investments, payable on demand.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

In our opinion, managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the Company in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated hy the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3(xii} of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disciosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has made private placement of preference shares. In
respect of the same, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of
Section 42 of the Act and the Rules framed thersunder. During the year, the Company
did not make private placement of fully/partly convertible debentures.

in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 182 of the Act.

: wc_c.._‘-
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{xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1834 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

Wekla ok (LS
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.; 601076N/N5S00013

/\)rlu \[QJ
per Nikhil Vaid
Partner

Membership No.. 213356

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2017

Chertered Accoyntants
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Annexure B fo the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jain
Sons Finlease Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controis under section 143{3}{i)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audif of the financial staterments of Jain Sons Finlease Limited ("the Company”)
as of and for the year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial conirels over financial
reporting (IFCofFR) of the Company as of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Infernal Financial Controis

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential compeonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporing {"the Guidance Note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

3. Curresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on cur audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issuwed by the 1ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit {o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

4, Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and {esting and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controf based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statermnents, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. Acompany's [IFCoFR is a process designed lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabifity of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s IFCoFR inciudes those policies and procedures
that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timetly detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Chaetored Accountatmts
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inherent Limitations of Internat Financial Confrols over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the pessibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to efror or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future pericds are subject to the risk that
{FCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies ar procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate IFCoFR and such IFCoFR were
operating effectively as of 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential componenis of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the [CAl

Welkn Gy { Gotef
For Watlker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 601076N/N500013
per Nikhil Vaid

Partner
Membership No.: 213356

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2017
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
{Formearly Walker, Chandiok & Co}
7th Floar, Block I, White House
Kundan Bagh, Begurnipet
Hyderabad 500016
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T +51 40 6630 8200
F +91 40 £630 8230

Auditor's Report

[Pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016}

To

The Board of Directors

Jain Sons Finlease Limited
1002, 10th Floor, Block A

The Platina Building, Gachibowli
Hyderabad — 500032
Tetangana, India

1. We have audited the financial statements of Jain Sons Finlease Limited, ("the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and have issued unqualified opinion vide our report dated 24 May 2017.

2. As required by the paragraphs 3 and 4 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI"} vide Notification
No. PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 28 Sepiember 2016, as amended and based on our audit,
we report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the sald directions:

a. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial institution (without
accepting or holding public deposits) and pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {as amended) it has obtained a certificate of registration vide
certificate no, B-09.00441 dated 25 September 2014.

b. In our opinion, and in terms of the Company’s assets and income pattern as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2017, the Company is entitled to continue to hold the cerlificate of registration
issued by the RBI.

¢. In our opinion, the Gompany is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down
in the Non-Banking Financial Company —Systerically important Non-Deposit taking Company
and De_p_osit ta_king Company (Resserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

Chartered Accotatants e 7 i Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is regislerad with imiled fiatiity
- S with ientification nember AAC-20AS and s regislered
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The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting heid on 68 May 2016 has passed a
resolution far non-acceptance of any public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Gompany has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2017,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the prudential norms issued by the RBI in relation te income
recognition, accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtiul
debis as applicable to it in terms of the Non-Banking Financial Company —Bystemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Birections, 2016,

We understand that the Company has submitied the Form NBS-7 for the quaster ended 31
March 2017 based on the provisicnal financial information, according to which the capital
adequacy ratio as at 31 March 2017 stands at 38.1%. In our opinion, the capital adequacy ratio
of 40.1% as disclosed in the audited financial statements for the year €nded 31 March 2017 is
in compliance with the capital to risk asset norm prescribed by the RBI,

As per the information furnished ko us, the Company has elecironically furnished the Farm
NBS-7 for the quarter ended 31 March 2017 within the stipulated time.

The Company is not a Non-Banking Finarcial Company — Micro Finance Institution as defined
under the Non-Banking Financial Company —Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

Woldleu (b3, ek 4 beS
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N / N500013

KRR

per Nikhit Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213356

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2017

Charteret Azcountants




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3t March 2017
{All amounts in ¥ unless olherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2047 21 March 2616
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 448,187,940 380,688,780
Heserves and suplus 4 582 487 286 101,738,824
1,030,685,226 401,428,204
HNon-cumrent Habilities
Long-temn borrowings : 5 873,991,428 513,805,433
Cther fong-ferm Fabifitios E 36,240,300 7,200,600
Long-lerm provisions 7 6,306,426 10,287,421
916,617,854 631,282,854
Current llahliitles
SharHerm borrowings 8 - 100,600,000
Chher current fiabitilies 8 551,809,964 625,021,021
Sher-term provisions 7 9,297,591 7,976,953
861,107,655 742,891,974
Total 2,908 410,635 1,866,713,032
Assets
Men-currant assets
Fixed Assels
- Tangitle assels : k) 6,166,740 6,148,843
- Intangible asscls 10 439,289 2.633,025
- Capital work-in-progress 12,342,778 B -
- Intangible assels under development 4,500,000 -
Deferred 1ax assets (ned) 12 4,261,182 . 9,150,141
Leans lo custemers 13 1,091,213,303 658,608,978
Long-term loans and advances 14 62,709,136 33,319,446
Cther non-cugtent assels 15 20,625,050 1,875,000
1,202,257,488 711735433
Current assels
Current investmenis 11 - 23,968,051
Cash angd hank balances. 16 226,474,766 237,758,158
Loans to customers . 13 1,432,363, 600 855,783,092
Shert-term loans and advances . 14 24,235,281 21,440,100
Other curent assels 158 26,089,600 15,027,398
4,706,163,147 1,153,877,502
Total 2,908,410,635 1,8656,713,032

The accernpanying notes farm an integral pan of these financial stalements,
This is ihe Balance Sheet referred o in cur report of even dale.

okl (Ldek § otiR

For Walker Chandiok & Co [.LP For and onbehalf of the Board of Directhrs of
Charfered Accountants Jaln Song Einlease Limited ag.-/""’
per Nikhll Vald ! ’ . Vineet Ch Adbar Khan
Partney : o Chaiman Exacutive Disector
o DIN: 00606280 and CED

BIn: 07657205

, ;- ' ‘ P’gh’, _ﬁ'{ﬁ ot
Nitin Prakish Agrawal m

Depuly CEQ and CFO Company Secrelary

Dale: 24 May 2017 . Date: 24 May 2017
Place: Mumbat Place: Mumbal




Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017

(Al amounts in ¥ unfess otherwise stated)

Notes 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Revenues
Revenug from operations 17 426,843,735 285,243,624
Cither income 18 26,194,225 28,301,538
Tofal revenues 453,037,960 313,545,162
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 14 66,384,235 57,205,137
Finance cosis 20 220,204,374 185,680,604
Depreciation and amortization 9& 10 2,196,665 1,822,368
Provisions and write-offs 21 41,658,162 26,134,360
Other expenses 22 46,614,987 28,636,056
Total expenses 377,058,423 289 487.615
Profit before tax 75,979,537 14,057 547
Tax expense
Current tax 19,041,753 5,980,815
Delerred tax expensef{credit) 4,888,959 {3,967,838)
Taxes of earlier years - 1,848,920
Profit for the year 52,048,825 10,085,650
Earnings per equity share (EPES) 24
Basic 4.74 0.83
Diluted 241 0.62
Nominal value per equity share 18 10
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,
ial o (hyate b o3

or Walker Chandioc! olLP Far and or] f2ehaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Jain Sons{Fintease Limited
r ‘ J L]
Nk oq ‘E]n e
er Nikhil Vaid Vineet dra Raf Akbar Khan
Partner Chairman Executive Direclor and
DIN: 00606290 CEQ

Date: 24 May 2017
Place: Mumbai

‘ ﬁmﬁrﬂ/

Nitin Prakash Agrawal
Deputy CEG and CFC

Date: 24 May 2017
Place: Mumbai

DIN: 07857205

4885 “
“GFitag Desal

Company Secretary



Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Gash Flow Staterment for the year ended 31 March 2017

{All amounis in T unlass otherwise stated)

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Cash flow from operating activities

Parinar

Date: 24 May 2017
Place: Mumbai

Chaimtan
BiN: 00666290

Nitin Prakaih Agrawal
Deputy CEO and CFO

Date: 24 May 2017
Place: Mumbai

Profit before tax 75,979,537 14,057,547
Adjustments far:
Depreciation 2,198,665 1,822,368
Provisions and wiite-offs 41,658,162 11,005,462
Emgloyee share based payment - 5,001,000
5ain on sale of investments {20,017,523) (19,790,647}
Operating profit before working capital changes 99,816,841 12,095,730
Increase In loans and advances (3,652,373) {3,083,380C)
Increase in loans to customers {1,064,090,126) {175,758,576)
{Increase)decrease in other current assets {29,812,202) 20,089,914
Increase in other Hiabililies and provisions 100,493,421 13,169,478
Cash used in operafions {897,244,439) {124,4856,833)
Income tax paid, nel (44,574,311} (37,319,510}
Het cash used in operating activitles {A) {941,818,760) {161,806,643)
Cash flow from invesfing activities
Proceeds from mutual funds 20,017,523 8,326,667
Proceeds from sale of invesiments 23,968,851 16,163,880
" Purchase of invesiments - {4,700,000)
Purchase of fixed assels {16,863,604) (3,408,054}
Invesiment in fixed deposil {6.544,660) (5,419,753)
Met cash generated from invasting activities ({z}] 20,578,110 10,872,840
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares (nel of issue expenses) 487,208,197 1,500,000
Proceeds from borrowings 1,203,000,000 740,000,000
Repayment of borrowings (786,795,609 (574,377,444}
Met cash generated from financing activities {C}) 903,412,688 170,122,556
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {17,828,052) 19,188,753
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 202,442,318 183,253,565
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 16} 184,614,266 202,442,318
Note 1: Interest paid 185,715,009 150,731,597
Note 2: Interest received on leans 362,418,845 263,740,281
This is the Cash Fiow Statement referred to in our report of even dale.
shlea chdolt £ b5 LLT
or Walker Chandiok % Co LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accoundants Jain Son }inleasé Limited
NI ANV \
per Nikhil Vaid Vineet Chandra Ral Akbar Khan

Executive Director
and CEQ
DIN: 07657205
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“Chitag Desal

Company Secrefary



Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in ¥ unless stherwise stated)

.

e

1.

,

Company ovetview

Jain Sons Finlease Limited ("the Company”) is a limited fability company incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. Effective 7 Jantsary 1999, the Company is registered as & non-deposit taking, Non-
Banking Financial Company (“NBFC") under the rules and reguiations framed by the Reserve Bank of India ("the
RBI". The Company is engaged in the business of lending, The Company is part of a Systemically Important
Mon-Depoesit taking NBFC greup.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statement has been prepared on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the accounting
standards notified pursuant to the Comparties {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) (the "Rules”)
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and ofher recognized accounting practices and policies generally accepied in India
including the requirements of the Act ("Indian GAAP*) and guidelines issued by the RB1 as applicable to non-
banking financial companies. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis except for
interest on non-performing loan assels which have been accounted on cash basis based on RBI rules. The
accounting poficies have been consistently applied by the Gompany and are consistent with those used in the
previous year.

All assets and lizbilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal opgrating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule [ to the Act. Based on the nature of work, the Company has
asceriained s operating cycle as up o twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification
of assets and fabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabifities and disclosures relating to contingent
lizhilities as at the reporiing date of the financial statements and amounts-of incoms and expenses. Examples of
such estimates include the provision for doublful loans, employee benefits, income taxes, recognition of deferred
tax assets, classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current and usefu! life of fixed assets,

Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
resuils could materially differ from those estimates. Any revision te accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assels are carried at the cost of acqulsition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost comprises the purchase price, freight, non-refundable taxes and duties, and any directly attributable.
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Assets retired from active use and held for
disposal are stated at their estimated net realisatile values or net book values, whichever is lower.

Depreciation

Depreciation Is provided using the straight line methed at the rates specified in Schedule H. Bepreciation is
calculated on & pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold or disposed.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internalfextermal factors. An impaimment loss is recogrized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds Its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value
it use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value at the
weighted average cost of capital.

Alfter impairment, depraciation is provided cn the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful

Mfes



Jain Sons Finleage Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{Alt amounts in ¥ unless othensise stated)

f.  Revenue recognition

Revenue is racognised to the extent that it is probable that the economiic benefits will fiow to the Company and
the collectability is reasonably assured.

inter=st on loans is recognised on accrual basis, except in the case of non-performing assets, where interest
is recognised upon realisation, in accordance with the direclives of the Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non - Deposit iaking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Direclions, 2016 {“*the Prudential Norms®). Additionat interest for delays in payments is recognized as income
only when it is certain that the amounts will be colected from the customers,

Loan processing fees is accounted on the basis of agreement with the customers.

Profitfloss on the sale of investments is computed on the basis of average cost of investments and
recognized at the time of salefredemplion.

Interest income is recognized on a fime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable.

Income from other financial services is recognised when the services are rendered and related costs are
incurred.

g lovestments

Invesiments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
investments. All other investmenis are classified as long-term Investhents.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individuat investment basis,
Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminuticn in value is made to recognise a
decline other than tempaorary in the value of the long-term investments.

h. Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank and an hand and include shor
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less,

i. Assetclassification and provisioning

Classitication of Assets:

Asset Classification Petlod of Over Due

Standard assets Not overdue or averdue for less than 120 days.
Nen-performing assets (NPA) Overdue for 120 days or more.

- Sub-standard assets An assst that has been classified as NPA for a period not

exceeding 14 months or an asset whére the terms of
agreement regarding interest andfor principal have been
. renegetiated or rescheduied.
- Doubtfi assels Sub-standard assels for more than 14 months.
- Loss assets Assets that are identified as loss assets by the Company
or internal auditor or external auditor or by the RBI.

Nole: Overdue refers to interest andfor mstalment remaining unpaid from the day it became receivable,




Jain Sons fFinlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explznatory information
{All amounis in T unless otherwise stated)

Provision for loan portfolio

Assef clagsification Parcentane of Provision
Standard assets 0.35%,
Sub-standard assets 10%
Doubtful assets
Unsecured 100%
Securad
Up to one year 2%
One fo three years 30%
More than three years 50%
Loss assels 100%
Provision on restiuclured accounts classified as sub-standard advances is made at 10%,
i. Employee benefits
Provident fund

Retirement banefit in the form of a provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the confributions are
charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
There are no olher obligations other than the contributicn payable to the respective authorities.

Gratuily

Gratuity is a post-employment defined benefit obligation. The liability recognized in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheat date, together with adjustments for pasl
service costs. An independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method calcutates the defined benefit
cbligation annuaily. Actuarial gains or josses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuariat
assumptions are credited or charged to the Sfaterment of profit and loss in the year inwhich such gains or losses
arise.

k. Foreign currency fransactions

Initial recognition
Fareign cutrency fransactions are recorded in the repoeting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reparted using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denorrinated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar vajuation denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined,

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary items or on the reporting af monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognized as income or as expense In the year in which they arise,

. Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current fax Is measured at the amount expected to be paid ta the tax autherities in accordance with the Income-
tax Act, 1961 enacted In India,




Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Sumimary of significant accounting policies and aother explanatory information
{All amounts in T unless othenwise stated)

Deferred {ax _

Deferred tax charges or credita reflect the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxatle
income for the period. The deferred tax charges or credits and the corresponding deferred tax liabififies or assets
are receghized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized
in the future periods, however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation
laws, deferred tax assets are-recognized only if there is a virtuat certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred
tex assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and writien down or written-up to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/virtually certain {as the case may be) fo be realized.

m. Employee share based payments

Measurement and disclosure of the employes share-based payment plans is done in accordance with the
guidance note an *Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments®, issued by the ICAL The excess of inttinsic
value of the stock on the date of grant over the exercise price of the oplion is recognized as expense in the
Statement of prefit and loss.

n. Leases

Where the lessor effectively retains all risk and benefits of ownership of the leased fems; such leases are
classified as operating lease. Operaling lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit
and loss on a siraight line basis.

o. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) for the year attributable fo equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of
calculating difuted earnings per equity share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable fo equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dikitive
potential equity shares.

p. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Pravigion is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a.result of a past event and when it is
probable that an outflow of resources wifl be required to seftle the obfigation, in respect of which a reliable
estimale can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on
management's bast estimate required to seftle the obligation at the balance shest date. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current anagement estimates. A disclosure of a contingent
liability is made when there is a possible or a present cbligation that may, but probably will not, require an cutflow
of resources.

q. Borrowing costs

Alt borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost congist of interest and ether costs that
the Company incurs in connection with the botrowing of funds. :
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

{All smouals in £ unless otherwise stated)

3. Share capital

Authorized
Equity shares of ¥{0 each

0.001% Compulsory Convertibie Prafarance

Shares {"CCPS") of ¥20 each

0.001% Serfes B1 CGPS of ¥100 each
0.001% Series B2 CCPS of T100 each
0.801% Series C CCPS of $10 each

isgued, subscribed and fully patd-up
Equity shares of ¥10 each

0.001% Series B CCPS of 100 each
0.001% Series B2 CCPS of T100 sach
0.001% Series G CCPS of T10 each

a) Reconcillation of equlty share capitat

Balance gl Lhe beginning of the year
Add: Allotted during the year
Balence at the end of the year

b) Reconcitiation of CCPS

G.001% Series BT CCHS of #1400 each
Balance at the baginning of the year
Add: Allated during the year

Balance at ke end of the-year

0.001% Series 82 CCPS of T100 each
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Allotted duning the year

Balance at the end of the year

0.001% Serles C CCPS of 10 cach
Balanck al the beginning of the year
Add: Aflotted during the vear
Balance al the end of the year

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Mumbay Amount Numbar Amount
47,500,000 175,000,000 17,500,000 175,000,600
2,600,008 40,009,000 2,600,000 40,000,000
2,500,000 260,000,000 2,500,000 250,000,000
300,000 30,000,000 204,800 30,000,000
6,800,000 60,000,000 6,000,080 60,000,000
555!0005000 L) UUUIO{}G
10,969,349 104,653,480 10,969,348 109,593,480
2,499,948 249,594,800 " 2,499,948 249,954,800
300,000 30,000,000 300,000 20,000,000
5,849,966 $8,495.660 - -
1145!1 87,940 339!688 280

31 March 2017

21 March 2018

Numbar Antount Number Amount
10,968,348 109,693 480 10,819,348 108,193 480
- - 150,000 1,200,000
410,869,348 168,693,480 10,969,348 109,693,460
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number Amount MNumber Amound
2,499,948 249,894,800 2,488,848 249,994,600
) 254 99;963 249,994!800 54 99,648 249,984 800
31 March 2017 _ 24 March 2018
Number Amount Number Amount
360,060 - 30,000,000 300,600 $0,000,000
300,000 30,000,099 300,080 30,000,000
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number Amaunt MNumber Amounl
5,A49,966 58,499,650 - -

58,459 660

§,849,966 ,339,

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of €30 per share, Each holder of equity shares is enfitied {o cne
vote per share. The Company deciares and pays dividends in indian rupeas, The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors, if BNy, is
subject o the approval of the sharsholders in the ensuing generafl masating.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled 16 recaive remaining assels of the Company in

proporiion of their shareholding.,



Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of glgnificant zecounting pelicias and other explanatory information
(Al amounts in T urdass otherwise stated)

d) Terms and rights attached to Serfes B CCPS of 2100 each
The Company had {ssued 2,499,548 Sories Bt CCPS and 300,000 Series 82 GCPS of face value €100 each fully paid-up at par
{colleclivaly Series 8 CCPS) on 18 February 2014, The Seties B - CUPS cany dividend af 0.001% per annum. In addition 1o the fixed
dividend, each COPS shatf be entilled to padicipaie alang with the equity shares in any dividends declared by the Company on tha equity
shares, a8 if such CCPS has been eonverted inte equity shares immediately prior to declaration of dividand by the Compasny.

Pursuanl {o the terms of the issie, Series B CCPS shall be compulsority convenitfe inlo equily share of $10 each fully pald-up at @
premitm of ¥42.25 par share, at the option of the holder, in accordance with the tems of the Shareholder's Agreement datod 29 March
2016 ("fhe Shareholder's Agreemeni’} between the Company, Intelfaciusl Gapilal Advisory Services Frivale Limded (IGAPT), ON
Mauritius, Michael and Susan Dell Foundalion, Trodos SICAV I-Triados Miciofinance Fund {"TSTMF”), Tricdas Cusledy BV.INZ -
Triodes Fair Share Fund {"TCTFSF"), DWM {Intemnational} Mauritius LTD (“DWM™, Vineet Rai and Sanjib Kumar Jha. If the COPS
holders do not exercise the conversion option, Series B GCPS shall be sulomalically converted into equity shere of 10 cach at 2
premiumt of T42.25 per share on 22 March 2019 in accordance with the terms of the Shareholders Agreement. In the event of liguidation
of tha Company befere converslon of CCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priority over equity shares in the paymen of dividend and
repaymen of capital.

e) Terms and rights attached to Series C CCPS of £10 each
The Company has alfofted 5,849,995 non-cumutalive CCPS of face value 310 each fully paid-up at a premium of E77.18 per share on 05
May 2016. The Saries G - CGPS cany dividend of 0.001% per annum. kn addliien to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall be entitied to
parlicipale along with the eqully shares in any dividends declared by the Company on the aquily shares, as ¥ such CCPS has been
converted into equily shares immediaiely prier o dedaration of dividend by the Company.

Pursuanl to fhe levms of the issue, 1 {one) Seriss C CCPS shall be compulsorily convenible into 1 (one} equily share of #10 each fully
paid-up, at the oplion of the holder, in sccordance with the 1erms of the Sharphoider's Agreemaent. If the CCPS holders do nol evercisa
tha conversion option, 1 {one} CCPS ehall be aulomalicaily converted into 1{one) equity share of 16 each at the end of 8th year from the
dale of issuance or on accurrence of an initial public offer in accordance with the lerms of the Sharefiolders Agraement. in he event of
Hquldation of the Company befote conversion of GCPS, the holders of CCPS will have priofily over equily shares in the payment of
dividend and repayment of capifal.

f) Details of equity shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries

31 Warch 217 31 March 2016
Kumber Amaunt Number Amouni
{CAP 5,999,535 §9,999.850 5,999,985 59,9558 250
intellaCash Microfinance Natwork Company
Privale Limited, a subsidiary of ihe holding
company (“InteflaCash™) - - 1,000,008 40,600,000

- g) Sharehotdess holding more than five percant of paid-up equity share capital

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number % holding Number ‘% hokfing

ICAP £,999,995 54,70% 5,898,995 54.70%
Michaet & Susan Del! Foundation 969,525 B.a4% 2601247 24.535%
IntetieCash - - 1,000,000 8.12%
Sanjib Kumar Jha - - 816,001 7.39%
TCTFSF 987,784 9.00% - -
TETMF 987,783 9.00% - -
Aavishkear Venlure Management Services 880,593 8.03% - -
Private Limited ("AWMS")

DWM 975 656 8.89% - -

h) Sharaholders holding more than five percent of 0.004% Serles B1 CCPS of TH00 cach fully paid-up

31 March 2017 31 March 2046
Number % holding Number % holding
ON Maurilius 2,489,948 400.00% 2.499.94é 100.00%
{) Shareholders holding more than five percent of 0.001% $eries B2 CCPS of 100 each fully paki-up
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Numbar % holding Number % holding
bWt 150,000 50.00% - "
TSTMF 75,040 25.00% - -
TOTFSF 75,000 25.00%

Michael & Susan Dell Foundation - - 300,000 160.00%
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i) Shareholders holding mare than five percent of 0.001% Series C CCPS of ¥10 each fully paid-up

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number % _holding Niutmber % holding
On Mauritius 1,720,578 28.41% . - -
DWW 2,064,684 35.28% - -
TSTMF 1,032,347 17.65% - -
TCTFSF 1,032,247 17.65% - -

k) Shares issust for a consideration ofher than in cash )
Tha issued, subscribed and fully patd-up shate capilal as at 3 March 2017 includes 710,000 (31 March 2018; 740,000) equily skares of
710 each fully pald-up, allotled pursuznl to contracl for consideration olher lhan cash during the period of five years immedialely
preceding lhe repariing date.

I} Shares reserved for issue to employees

Employea share based payment
At its meeting held on 10 December 2612, the Board of Disectors ("lhe Board™) had approvad allotment of 840,889 aquily shares of 10
each to empioyess of the Company under a-share bazed employee compensation plan.

Of these, in tha previous year, the Board had identified and allotted 740,000 equity shates to employaes of face vatue of £10 each to
cadain employses on a private placeman basis. The board of direciors have approved the sakf allotmant on 3. November 2015 for a ¢ash
consideration of 10 per share, Tha difference between the fair vatue of shares on ihe date of allatmeni being 243.34, as determined by
an independent valuer, and the ¢ash cansideration was considered as compensation for setvices rendered by the said employees,

Bluring the year, the Company has glven tight ta Akbar Khap, Chief Execulive Officer to subescrdbe to 75,000 equity shares of the
Company at T87.18 per share at any fime hefore 31 March 2017, As at 31 March 2077, Mr. Akbar Khan iz yet io exercise his rights and
the Company is evahsating to extend limefine for exercise.

The balance 55.65% equily shares shall be aliolted to efigible emplovees of lhe Company based on recommendation of CEQ and
approval of Board. ’ ’

tn the opinion of the management, the cos{ of share based payments under fair value mathod is no! axpecled o be significantly ditferent
from tha cosl detemined under infrinsic valua methad, the pro forma disclosures regarding impact of fair value method on the repored
net profit and eamings per equily shara has not been made.
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4. Reserves and surplus

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

Statutory reserve fund

" Balance at the beginning of the year 13,460,373 11,441,243
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss 10,409,765 2,019,130
Balance at the end of the year 23,870,138 13,460,373
Securities premium account
Balance at lbve beginning of the.year 356,131,366 31,130,366
Add: Premium on {ssue of shares 451,500,376 5,001,000
Less: Share issue expenses (22,791,839} -
Balance st the end of the year 464,839,903 36,131,366
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 52,148,185 44 071 665
Add: Profit for the year 5?.048,825 10,395,650
Less: Transferred fo stalutory reserve fund (10,409,765) (2,019,130)
Balance al the end of the year 93,787,245 52,148,185

582 497,286 101,739 924

. Long-term borrowings

{Secured)
3 March 2017 31 March 2016
Debentures
1,942 (31 March 2016: 1,842) Non-Convertible 194,200,000 194,200,000
Redeemable Debentures (NCDs) of T100,000 each fully
paid-up
2,400 (31 March 2016: 2,400} Non-Convertible 240,000,000 240,000,000
Redeemable Debentures (NCDs) of €100,000 each fully
paid-up
1,330 (31 March 2846: Nil) Non-Converlible Redeemable 133,000,000 -
Debeantures (MCDs) of 100,000 each fully paid up
4,000 (31 March 2016; Nil} Non-cenveriible Redeemable 400,000,000 -
debentures (NCDs} of 100,000 each fufly paid up
Term oans
- from banks - 20,205,684
- from others 748,439,133 745 029 058
_ 1,715,639,133 1,199434,742
Less: Current maturities of long-ferm borrowings {refer nate 6) 841,647,705 585,629,309
873,991,428 613,605,433

oo
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{a) Dehentures

(i The Company had allofted 1,942 NCDs of face value of 100,000 each fuily paid-up at discount of 31,000 per debenture on
8 QOctober 2014, NCDs are secured by way of hypothecation of specified book debisfioan receivables and carmies interest
rate of 13.5% per annum. Interest rate shall be reset after a period of three years from the date of afletment. The NCDs are
redeemable at par on 8 October 2020. The Company has call option and the debenture holders have put option on NCDs
exercisable at the end of 36 months from the date of issue,

{iiy The Company had allotted 2,400 NCDs of face value of 100,000 each fully paid-up at par on 23 March 2015. NCDs are
secured by way of hypolhecalion of specified book debisfloan receivables and carmries interest rate of 13.25% per annum.
The NCDs are first redeemable at par on 23 March 2018, The redemplion date, at the option of the debenture holders, may
te extended firgt fo 23 March 2018 and then to 23 March 2020. -

{iil) The Company has allelted 1,330 NCDs of face value of 100,000 each fully paid-up at par on 10 Juns 2018. NCDs are
secured by way of hypathecation of specified book debisfloan receivables and casries interest rate of 13.25% per annunt.
The NCDs are redesmable af par in two equal Instaliments on 14 December 2020 and 14 June 2021.

(iv} The Company has allotted 4,000 NCOs of face value of T100,000 each fully paid-up at par an 18 November 2016. NCDs zre
secured by way of hwpothecation of specified book debisfican réceivables and caries interest rate of 13.25% per annum.
The NCDs are redeemable at par in two equal instaliments on 17 May 2021 and 17 Novembar 2021,

{B) Term loans
The loan from barnk carried interest linked to the bank's prime lending rate and was 13.5% per annum. The interest on jfoans
frem ofhers ranges from 13.15% fo 15.65% per annum (31 March 2016 13.17% lo 15.65% per annum per annum). Loans
are secured as follows:
- Loans amounting fo 748,439,133 (31 March 2016: ¥765,234,742) is secured by way of hypothecation of back debts
created out of ihe loan amount,
- Loans from others amounting to 328,839,199 (31 March 2016: ¥373,405,031) is also secured by way of cashfixed
deposits.

() Repayment schedule

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Up to 1 year 841,647,705 585,629,309
2to Syears 873,991,428 613,805,433
1,715,639,133 1,199,434,742
6. Other Habilities
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Non-current
Cotlateral deposits from customers 36,240 000 7,200,000
36,240,600 7!200!000
Current -
Current maturilies of long-term borrowings 841,647,705 585,629,309
Interest acerued hut not dus 47,765,117 21,556,924
Statutery liabilities 2,322,993 962,679
Collateral deposits from customers - 7,600,000 -
Advance from-cusfomers and refundable reimbursements 35,990,596 4,033,683
Other liabilities 16,583,547 12,838,426

951,809,964 626,021,021
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7. Provisians

Long-ferm

Provision for gratuity*
Conlingent grovision against standard assets
Pravision on sub-standarg assetis

Short-term

Provision for gratuity®
Contingent provision against standard assetls

Provision

- On sub-standard assets

- On invesiments

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1,526,053 846,695
3,860,373 6,719,070
1,000,000 2,721,656
5,386,426 10,267 421
8,694 5,178
4,805,509 10,248,948
4,482,988 7,477,138
- 239,689
9,297,591 17,970,953

* The following table sef out the status of the gratulfy plan and the reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the

present value and defined benefit obfigation.

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
nterest cost on benefit obligation
Net actuarial loss / {gain}

Nef expense

Changes in present value of the deflped benefit obligation for gratulty

Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost
Actuarial {gains)/ losses con ebligations
Closing defined benefit obligation

Ce

.r \....‘-
/o

£

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

608,872 388,332
63,850 40,728
10,108 {87,678}

§82,874 341,382

31 March 2017

31 March 2046

851,872 910,491
63,880 40,728
608,879 388,332
10,105 (B7,678)
1,534,747 851,873
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The principal assurmptions used in determiting gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
31 March 2047 31 March 2016

Discounling rala {per annum} 7.50% 7.80%
tncrease in compensation cost 5.00% . 5.00%
Allitlion rate 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 g0

The estimates of future salary increases considerad in actuarial valuation, take account of Inflation, senicrity, promotion and other relevant factors.

Amounts for the current and previous four yearsiperiods are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2077 31 March 2616 31 March 2045 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Defined bDenefit obligation 1,534,747 851,873 510,491 73,048 16,565
Plzn assels - - - - -
Surplus (Defich) {1,534,747) {851,873 (510,491) (73,048) {16.565)

(493,009 - . - -

Experience adjusiments on plan jiabilities -(Gainyloss
Experience adjustmenis on plan assels -{Loss)/Galn - - - - .

8. Short-term horrowings
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Loan from others (Secured) ) - 104,000,000

- TGGEOOU D00

Laan from others atnounling Lo Nit (31 March 2016: ¥100,000,000) was secured by way of hypothecation of ook debls crealed cuf of the loan amount,
‘The loan carded inleresi of 14% per annum.
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9. Tangible assets

Office Furniture
Computers equipment and Fixtures Total
Gross block
As at 1 April 2018 2,224,050 1,000,173 4,600,000 7,234,223
Additions 516,245 886 078 1,338,343 2,740 666
As at 31 March 2016 2,740,295 1,886,251 5,338,343 9,964,889
Additions 1,475,100 411,076 148,200 2,034,376
Disposatsfadjustmeris - - - -
As at 31 March 2017 4,215,395 2,297,327 5,486,543 11,999,265
Accumulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2615 1,192,068 443,849 498,313 234,227
Charge for the year 93G6,548 308,128 465,143 1,681.819
Up to 31 March 2016 2,098,613 749,977 967,456 3,816,046
Charge for the year 1,048,541 427 244 538,887 2016479
Up to 31 WMarch 2017 3,148,154 1,177,218 4,507,153 5,832,528
Net block
As at 31 March 2017 1,067,241 1,120,109 3,979,390 6,166,740
As at 31 March 2016 641,682 1,136,274 4,370,887 6,148,843
10. Intangible assets
__Software Total
Gross block )
As at 1 Aprit 2015 2,038,078 2,038,078
Additions 757,388 757,388
As at 31 March 2016 2,795,466 2,795,466
Additions . 351,450 351,450
Disposals/adjustments : {2,365,000) {2,365,000) -
As at 31 March 2017 781,916 781,916
Accumuated amortization
Up to 1 April 2015 21,892 21,892
Charge for the year 140,549 140,54%
Up to 31 March 2016 162,441 162,441
Charge for the year 180,186 180,188
Up to 31 March 2047 342,627 3426827
Net block
As at 371 March 20147 439,289 439,289

As at 31 March 2016 2,633,025 2,833,025
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11.

i2.

13

Investments
{Unqucted, non-irade)

Current
investment in PTCs

Nil units {31 March 2015; 90 uniis) of Series A2 PTCs of Arkaios Multi Micro Finance

3 Mareh 2017

31 March 2016

Pool Trust 20115 of face value of ¥266,320.57 each. - 23,968,851
- 23,968,851
Deferred tax assets (net}
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Deferred tax liability
On acecount of
Fixed assels 924424 192,325
Deferred tax assets
On account of
Provision for sfandard and sub: - standard assets 4,678,473 8,042,630
Cthers 507,433 300,436
4,261,182 9,160,141

Laans to customers

{Considered good)
31 March 2017 3 March 2016
Standard assets Non-current Current Non-current Current
Secured £99,018,675 902,991,040 471,866,886 628,398,541
Unseoured 482,194,628 486,521,101 159,525,530 197,130,881
1,081,213,303 1,385,512,141 631,392 416 825,530,422
Sub-standard assefs
Secured 10,000,600 42,501,652 27,216,562 30,252,670
Unsecured - 339,707 - -
10,000,000 42,841,309 27,216,562 30,252,670
1,091,243,303 1,432,353,500 658 608978 865,783,092

Loans fo customers include dues from following companies, in which director of the Company isivas a diteclor;

Maximum outstanding during the
year

31 March 2017

Closing balance

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

Vaatsalya Healthcare Selutions Private Limited . -

10,049,156 10,049,156 32,025,487
Visage Holding & Finance Private Limited - 14,357,812 11,397,812 32,858,866
IntelleCash Microfinance Network Company 51,271,812 - 60,000,000 -
Private Limited i
Elecirenic Payment and Services Private Limiled - 56,375,001 56,375,001 86,875,000
Connect India E-Commerce Services Private 11,503,784 - 15,000,000 -
Limnited
Liink Bio Energy Private Limited - - - 28,885,450
il Manira Dairy Private Limited - - 50,000,000 -

W a o
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14. Loans and advances
{Unsecured, considered good)

31 March 2617 31 March 2016
Long-term
Collateral security given to lenders 9,525,590 8,000,000
Deposits 5,046,102 1,714,500
Advance tax (nel of provision) 48,137,504 22,604,946
62,709,196 33,318,446
Short-term
Coilateral security given to lenders 11,000,000 11,845,568
Receivable for services 7,097,067 -
Deposiis 1,666,500 330,241
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 312,022 250,985
Prepaid expenses 458 412 2,260,654
Loan and advances fo directars* - 5,000,000
Interest free loan to employees 701,280 1,752,641
e A, 235,287 21,440,100

sinciudes Nil {31 March 2016: ¥5,000,000) due from Mi. Sanjib Kumar Jha, Director and CEQ.

18, Other assets

(Unsecured, considered good}
- 31 March 2047

31 March 2016

Non-current .

Fixed deposits with bank {with malurity of more than 12 months)* 20,625,000 1,875,000
20,625,000 1,875,000

¥ includes 20,625,000 (31 March 20186: T1,875,000) held as collateral against the borowings.

Currant

Accrued inlerest 26,089,600 13,939,886

Cther recelvables - 1,087,512
26,089,600 15,027,398

16. Gash and bank balances
31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts 183,988,385 108,588,618

Cash on hand . 626,881 439,902

Cheques on hand - 3.413,788
184,614,266 202,442,318

Other bank halances

Fixed deposits with bank (with maturily of less than 12 months)* 41,860,500 36,315,840
228 474,768 237 !7 58, 158

* includes ¥41,860,500 (31 March 2016: 30,336,097} held as collateral against fhe bormowings.
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17.

18.

18,

20.

21,

Revenue from operations

Interest income from
Loan fo cusiomers
Others

Other financial services
Loan processing fees
Loan syndication fees
Olhers

Cther income

Interest on fixed deposiis
Gain on sale of investmends
Bad debts recovered
Miscellanecus income

Employee henefils expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Employee share hased payment
Contribution o provident fund
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs

Provisions and write-offs

Cantingent provision against standard assets (refor note 34)
Provision for sub-standard and non-performing assetls {refer nole 34)
Provision on investments
Loans wrillen-off

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

372,238,800 245,903,576
3,523,328 14,264,268
39,788,601 21,058,501
11,105,505 3,600,000
187,500 417,278
475,843,735 285,243,624

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

4,416,152 3,074,435
20,017,623 19,780,647
1,760,550 3,859,488

- 1,576,968
26,194,225 28,301,538

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

57,630,968 48,824 465
- 5,001,000

5,295,651 -
682,874 341,382
2,774,742 2,838,280
66,384,235 57,205,137

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

211,923,202 160,893,121
8,281,172 24,796 573
220,204,374 185,680,694

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

{8,201,736) 3,100,073
{4,715,806) 8,822 477

(239,689} {917.088)
54,915,393 15,128,898
41,658,162 26,134,360
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22, Other expenses

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Rent 4,508,930 3,613,194
Cffice expenses 5,220,399 3,660,651
Electriclly expenses 493,860 487,780
Legal and professional fees 18,576,093 5,412,851
Rates and taxes 5771884 4,432,469
Communication expense 1,281,893 1,127,371
Traveiling and conveyance 4,836,819 6,303,717
Prinling and stationery 700,470 506,269
Paymenits to the auditor
- Statutory audit fees {including Rs. 461,000 for previous year) 1,711,000 665,000
- Tax audit fees 156,000 150,000
- Limited review fees 250,000 250,000
Advertisement expenses 550,800 -
Miscellaneous expenses - 2,583,039 2,009,654
46,614,987 25,636,056
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23. Related party disclosures

a) Name of the refated parties and relationship

Name of the pariles

Nature of relationship

ICAP

Holding company

InfelleCash

Fellow subsidiary

ntelecap Advisory Services Private LUmited
{“intellecap™}

Entity in which directors has significant infiuence

AVMS Entity having significant influence on the holding
company
Arohan Financial Services Private Limited ("Arghan™) Feilow subsidiary

Sanjib Kuraar Jha (uplo 30 September 2016}
Akbar Khan {from 07 November 2018)

Key management personnei (KMP)

b) Transactions during the year

ICAP
Retmbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the
Company

Inteflecap
Advisory services

Arochian
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the
Cormpany

intelleCash

Loans given

Processing fees income
tnterest income

Loan recovered

AVMS
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the
Company

Sanjib Kumar Jha
Salaries, wages and bonus
Employee loan given
Interest on loan

Akbar ihan
Salaries, wages and bonus

¢} Balances receivablel(payable)

[CAP
IntelleCash
Sanjib Kumar Jha

_.Note: In addition to this, Akbar Khan was also given
.. Lompany at ¥87.18 per share,

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

52,026 504,961
12,750,617 -
- 1,228,320
60,060,000 -
690,000 -
§74,286
8,728,388
976,740 -
3,075,000 6,612,086
. 5,000,000
- 95,370
2,101,302 -
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{44,951) (44,951}
51,271,612 -
(1,310,743) 5,000,000

right to subscribe to 75,000 equity shares of the
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24. Earnings per equity share [EPES]

31 March 2017 31 Maich 2016

a)  Profit for the year atiributable for calculating diluted EPES 52,048,825 10,095,650
Less: Dividend on CCPs @9.001% 3,385 2,800
Profit for the year attributable for calculating basic EPES 52,045,440 - 10,082,850

by Computation of weighted average number of equity shares used in computation of basic and
diluted EPES

31 March 2017 31 Mareh 2016

Weighted average number of shares considered for computation

of basic EPES 10,969,348 10,880,856
Add: Effect of potential dilutive shares 10,647,763 5,358,752
Weighted average number of shares considered far computation
of diluted EPES i 21817111 16,239,408
25. Expenditure in foreign currency
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Travel and conveyance 15,381 508,712

26. Additional disclosures pursuani fo Master Direction ~ Non Banking Financial Company — Systemically
{important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

3 March 2017

Amoutnt Amount
oitstanding averdue
Liabifities side:
{1} Loans and advances avaifed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
{a) Debentures
Secured 1,011,309,123

Unsecured -
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b} Deferred Credits -
(¢} Term loans, including inlerest accrued but not paid 752,095,127
(d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing -
{e) Commercial Paper -
{f} Otherloans - from banks and financial institutions -
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31 March 20147

Assets side;
(2) Break up of Loans and advances including bills
receivable (other than those included in (3} below):

a} Secured, gross 1,654,511,367
b) Unsacured, gress 969,055,436

{3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFG activities
(i) Lease assels including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:

{a} finance lease -
{b} operating [ease -

{ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
dablors:

{a) assets on hire -
{(b) repossessed asset -

(iiiy Other foans counting towards AFC activities
{a) loans where assets have bgen repossessed -
{b) loans ather than {a) above -

(4} Breakup of investments
Current Investments :
1, Quoted
{i) Shares .
(a) Equity -
{b) Preference -
{iy Debentures and Bonds . -
{iii) Units of mutual funds ‘ -
(iv} Govermnment Securities -
{v} Others -

2. Unquoted
{i} Shares :
(a) Equity ] - -
{b) Preference -
(i} Debentures and Bonds -
{iil)Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Government Securities -
(v} Others {PTCs) -

Long Term investments ;

1. Quoted

{i) Shares: -
(a) Equity -
(b} Preference - -
(i} Debentures and Bonds -
(i} Units of mutual funds -
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{iv} Government Securities -
{v) Others -

2.Unguoted

(i} Shares:

(a) Equity . -
{b} Preference -
(i} Debentures and Bonds .
{iiiy Units of mutual funds -
(iv} Government Securities -
{v) Others (PTCs) _ -

Net of provision as at 3% March 2017

(5) Borrower group-wise classification
of assels financed s in (2) and
{3} zbave:

Category Secured Unsecured Totai

1. Relfated parties
(a} Subsidiaries - - .
(b} Companies in the same

group - 51,002,162 51,092,162
(c) other related parties - - -

2. Other than related pariies 1,543,862 081 914,363,280 2.458,325,371

Total 1,543,962091 965,455,442 2,508,417,533

6} Investor group-wise classification
of all investments {currents and
long term} in shares and

securities {both quoted and
unguioted)
Market Book value
value/ {net of
Breakup or provisions)
fair value or
Category NAV

1. Related parties . -
(2) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group - _
{c} Other related parties - .
Z, Cther than related parties - -

Total . - -

31 March 2017

(7}  Other information

{f} Gross non-performing assels
{a) Related parties -
{b) Other than related parties 52,841,359
{ii) Net non-performing assets
{a) Related parlies -
{b) Other than related parties 47,358,371

C ist (i) Assets acquired on safisfaction of debt -
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Jain Sons Finlease Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
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28. Additional disclosures required under the RBI regulations

1.

2. Capital fo Risk Asset Ratio (“CRAR"}

3.

Asset lability management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and Habillities as at 3T March 2017

Borrowings:
Perfod

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 day to 30/31 days (1 month)
QOver 1 month to 2 months
Over 2 monih ko 3 months
Over 3 month fo & months
Over 6 month to 1 year

Over 1 Year to 3 years

Over 3 years to 5 years

Over 5 years

Assets:
Period

1 day to 30/31 days {1 month}
Over 1 month to 2 months
Over 2 month fo 3 months
Over 3 month to 6 months
Over 6 month to 1 year

Over 1 Yeario 3 years

Over 3 years o 5 years

Over 5 years

From banks  From others From banks From others
- 38,208,284 2,050,419 53,234,412
- 51,055,463 2,187,953 62,663,709
- 49,546 474 2,206,274 67,491,631
- 306,935,436 8,776,536 185,248,748
- 305,733,072 8,984 502 206,305,784
- 341,159,404 - 614,284,774
- 533,000,000 - -
- 1,715,639133 20,205,684 1,279,229,058

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Investments Advances investments Advances
- 174,605,700 - 98,662,018
- 119,374,614 2,976,876 €2,870,221
- 120,002,849 9,162,637 82,255 4687
- 362,988,582 11,808,438 219,802,627
- 645,208,893 800 392,082,760
- 828,516,789 - 508,038,826
- 272,868,376 ~ 49,570,151
- 2523,566,803 23,968,851  1,514,392,070

Notes:

1. The above bofrowings excludes interest accrued but not due.

2, The advances comprise of loan portfolio and does not include interest accrued.

3. The abave information has been considered as per the Asset Liability Management (ALM) report compited

by {he management and reviewed by the ALM commitiee.

CRAR (%)
CRAR — Tier | Capitai (%)
CRAR — Tier H Capital (%)

Amount of subordinated loan raised as Tier It Capital
Amount raised by issue of perpetuat debt instruments

Investments

Value of investments

Gross value of investments:

a) Inindia
b} Qutside India

Provisions for depreciation
a} Inindia

" b) Oulside India

. Wete -

3 March 2017

3 March 2016

40.1%
40.1%

30.4%
30.4%

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

23,958,851

239,669
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31 March 2047 31 March 2018

Net value of invesiments
a) Inlindia - 23,729,162
c} Outside India - -

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on

investments
Cpening balance 239,689 1,156,776
Add: Provisions made during the vear - -
Less: Write-offfwrite-back of excess provisions during the
year 239,689 917087

Closing balance - 238,689

4. Derivatives
The Company does not have any derivatives exposure in the current and previous yeat.

5. Disclosure relating to securitization
The Company has not done any securitization during the year,

6. Exposures

a. The Company does not have any direct exposure to real estate seclor in the current and previous year.
Details of exposure to capital market are as follows:

31 March 2017 31 March 2018

i. directinvestment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentiires and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invasted in corporate debt; - -
ii. advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securilies or on clean basis to individuals for investment
in shares {inciuding IPQs / ESCPs), convertible bonds,
canvertibie debeniures, and units of equity-orienied
mutuai funds; - -
iii. advances for any other purposes where shares or
converiible honds or converdible debentures or units of
equity oriented mudual funds are taken as primary
security; 664,045,336 451,298,126
iv. advances for any other purposes to the extent secured
by the coilateral security of shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equily criented
mutuzl funds Le. where the primary securily other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures /
units of equify oriented mutual funds doas not fully cover
the advances; - -
v. secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of steckbrokers and market
makers; - -
vi. loans sanctioned to corporates against the securily of |
shares / bonds / debentures or other gecurities or on
clean basis for meeting promboter's coniribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources; - -
vii.  bridge loans to companies against expected equity
flows / issies; ' - -
viit.  all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered
and unregistered) - -

- ITOlaI exposure fo capital market 664,045,836 451,208,126
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k. Details of financing of parent compaty products
The Company has not financed any parent company product.

c. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL.YGroup Borrower Limit {GBL] extended by the NBFC

The exposure to a single borrower and group of borrower does not exceed the kmit stipulated under the
conceniration of credit norms applicable to the Company.

d. Unsecured advances
The details of unsecured advances are provided in Note 13 to the financiat statements, Further, the Company
has not given any loan against intangible assets.

7. Miscellaneous

i.  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obfained any registration from other financial sector regutators.

ii. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalfies have been imposed by RBI or other financial sector regulators during the current and
previous year,

fii. Ratings assighed by credit rating agerncles and migration of rafings during the year
The delalls of ratings assigned by Credit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE]) vide their report dated
8 June 2016 and migration of rating during the year is as follows:

Faclity Rating Remarks
Non-convertible debeniure CARE BBB- Reaffirmed
Long-ferm bank faciliies ' CARE BBB- Reaffirmed

iv.  Revenue recognition

The Company has not posiponed recognition of revenue pending resolufion of significant
uncerainties.

8. Additional disclosures

i. Provisions and contlngencies {as shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss)

31 Marci 2017 31 March 2016
Provisions on investments (239,689) (917,088)
Provisions for sub — standard assels (4,715,806) 8822477
Provisions for incume tax 19,044,753 5.980,815
Provision for gratuity 682,874 341,382
Provisions for standard assets (8,301,738) 3,100,073

ii. Draw down from reserves
The Company has not made any drawdown of reserves during the year.

jil,. Concentrafion of deposits
The Caompany has not accepted any depaosit from public in the current and previous year. Hence, this
disclosure is not spplicable. .
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v. Concentration of advances, exposures and NPAs

e

a)

b)

<)

d)

&)

Conceniration of advances
Totat advances to twenty largest borrowers

Percentage of advances to twenty largest
borrowers {o total advances

Concentration of exposures

Total exposure {o twenty largest
borrowersicustomers

Percemage of exposure to twenty largest
borrowersfcusiomers to tolal exposure

Goncentration of NPAs
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts

Sector wise NPAs

(Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that
sectar) -
Agriculture and alfied activilies

MSME

Corporate borrowers
Services

Unsecured personal loans
Aute leans

Chher personial loans

Movernent of NPAs
1. Net NPAs to nef advances (%)

i.  Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Clesing balance

ii. Movement of Net NPAs
©Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

iv. Movement of provisions for NPAs
{excluding provislon on standard assets)
Opening balance

Provisions made during the year
Wite-offf write-back of excess provisions
Closing balance

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1,056,018,127
41.85%

1,056,018,127
41.85%

49,471,840

1.89%

57,469,232
50,287,520
(54,915,393}
52,841,358

47,270,438
§0,287,520
(58,198,587)
47,358,371

10,198,784

(4,715,8086)
5,482,588

827,122,869

653.54%

827,122,868
§3.54%

57,469,232

3.16%

51,854,988
41,563,475
(35,959,231)
67,460,232

48,182,143
32,201,192
(33,112,897}
47,270,438

3,682,845
9,352,283
{2.846,334)
10,198,784
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fy Overseas assets {for thuse with Joint venturers and subsidiaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the year.

a) Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored {which are required to be consolidated as per accounting
norms}

The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the year.

9. Disclosure of customer complaints

31 March 2017 31 dMarch 2016
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
Na. of coraplaints received during the year

No. of complaints redressed during the year
No, of complaints pending at the end of the year

29. Loans sanctioned but not disbursed as at 34 March 2017 amounts fo %278,300,000 (31 March 2016:
%122,500,000).

30. The Company has entered inlo non-cancellable operating lease arrangements in respect of its office premises.
The lease expense for non-cancelable operating leases during the year ended 31 fiarch 2017 is 4,508,930
{31 March 2016: T1,307,604). The Company’s obligation towards payment of consideration (excluding service
taxes) over the remaining term of the arrangement is as follows:

Period 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Not later than one year 14,091,804 3,988,600

Later than one year and not fater than five years 23,596,850 7,832,550
Later than five years - -

31. Segment reporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the interal financiat reporting to the management,
*Lending” has been considered as the only reportable segment. Further, alt operations are based only in india.
Hence, no saparate financial disclosures have been provided for segment reporting.

32. The Company has received foreign direct investment under automalic route as prescribed under the
Censolidated Foreign Direct Investment Poficy of the Governiment of India, which, in view of the management
and based cn opinion of an independent counsel, is in accordance with the extant guidelines notified by the
R8I,

33. Based on Information available with the Company, as at 31 March 2017, there are no suppliers who are
registered as micro, small and medium enterprises under the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2008,

34. Effective 1 Aprl 2066, the Company has amended its estimate for assst classification and provisioning for
loan portfolic 1o be in line with the provisioning norms prescribed by the R8I in the Prudential Norms, Had the
Company continued to use the garfier estimate, the provision and write offs {o the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the vear would have been higher by 38,461,387,
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35. Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company had specified bank nofes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA
notification G.8.R. 308(E) dated 31 March 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Nofes {SBN} held and
transacted during the period from 8 Novernber 2016 to 30 December 2016 the denomination wise SBNs and
other notes as per the notification is given below:

Parficulars SBNs* Cther Total
) denomination
notes
Closing cash in hand as on B November 2016 21,500 168,560 180,060
(+} Permitted receipts - 310,000 310,000
{-} Permitted payments - 56,940 56,940
{) Amount depesited in Banks 21,500 5000 26,500
Closing cash [n hand as on 30 December 2016 - 416,620 416,620

*For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Noles' shall have the same meaning provided in
the notification of the Government of India, in {he Ministry of Finance, Depariment of Economic Affairs number
$.0. 3407(E), dated the Bth Nevember, 2016.

36. Contingent Liabilities

i. The Company has filed for compounding of offences relating to non-compiliances with Section 285 and 297
of the Companies Act, 1956. The Management is of the view that Tribunal will look af the matters favourably
and the impact of seitlement on financlal statements will not be material.

i. The Company has filed appeals refating to demand of Rs.3,271,509 raised by assessing officer for the
financial year 2013-14 arising on account of disallowances of cerfain expenses. The Management is of the
view that such disallowances are not sustainable and the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

37. Previous year's figures have been regroupedirearanged to conform to those of the current year.

This is the summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information
referred to in our report of even dateP
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For Walker Ghandiok & Co LLP ehalf of the Board of Directors,of
Chartered Accountanis i imi
L] ' [
per Nikhil Vaid : : Akbar Khan
Partner . .-+ Chairman Executive Director and
DIN: C0B08290 CEO
. DIN: 07657205
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Nitin Pralkash Agrawal mai,
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